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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEHR

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

MON Chung Hung (Chief Executive Officer and Deputy Chairman)
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

MON Wai Ki, Vicky

MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LAU Chun Kay

LEE Chung Nai, Jones

CHUNG Kit Ying

Audit Committee

LAU Chun Kay (Committee chairman)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones

KOO Di An, Louise

CHUNG Kit Ying

Remuneration Committee
LAU Chun Kay (Committee chairman)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones

KOO Di An, Louise

CHUNG Kit Ying

Nomination Committee
LAU Chun Kay (Committee chairman)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones

KOO Di An, Louise

CHUNG Kit Ying

Compliance Committee
KOO Di An, Louise (Committee chairman)
MON Chung Hung

SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

MON Wai Ki, Vicky

MON Tiffany

LAU Chun Kay

LEE Chung Nai, Jones

CHUNG Kit Ying

Authorised Representatives
MON Chung Hung
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

Company Secretary
AU Sui Cheung

Exg

BTES

R ((THEHREIER)
FRIBAX

HIEH

HEIE

FHITES
B (EF)

BYFYITES
Elhi
FRE

BEREEE
ZIRE (ZAR L)
ERE

Bz

HMWESE
ZIRE (ZAR L)
ERE

Bz

REZEE
ZURE (ZAR L)
ERE

Bz

ERZEg
B (ZERER)
TR

e

5%

Ee

2I{RBY

FRE

BRRE
R iR
BB
DAWE
(EeirEs



Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Units 2002-2006, 20th Floor
Greenfield Tower

Concordia Plaza

1 Science Museum Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Stock Code

Stock Code on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited: 00725

Solicitor

Watson Farley & Williams
Suites 4610- 4619
Jardine House
Connaught Place

Hong Kong

Principal Banker
Hang Seng Bank

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

Principal Registrar and Transfer Office
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Branch Registrar and Transfer Office
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

17M Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Website

http://perennial.todayir.com

Annual Report 2017 R

Corporate Information (Continued)
NE|ERHE)

M EE
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

ERATEEEME
BE

pak: N7 E]

BIEgRE 155

FERES

[E2)2

20182002-2006%

B 431X 5R
ERBBEZZIBRAR
R 5% : 00725

e :01]
Eogeill S ERIES
BE

TeEEF

TEMAE

4610- 4619%F

FRARRT
1B L8R

&b

s ETe3H

= EED

& EROKEERTRI ST
EBPRIR
KFARNE221E

ROBLCRBFER

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

BREERBEBEDE
BEESFELERAT
BBET

ERKNBFR1839E

AL

17MiE

81k

http:/perennial.todayir.com

3



Perennial International Limited 1E&#fSE BB R A 7

MISSION STATEMENT
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Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain the
high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and service
to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a business
demanding excellence in all of its operations.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
SEEMT

The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and trades
quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid wire, wire
harnesses and plastic resins. The Group’s primary markets are
America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan and Southeast
Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national producers of
electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, as at 31st December 2017, the
Group employs 1,032 staff worldwide involved in management,
sales and marketing, shipping, procurement, financial and
accounting, engineering, production and manufacturing. The Group
considers its employees to be its most important asset while its
key values are quality, prudence and integrity.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ER®E

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Perennial
International Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to announce
the audited consolidated financial results of the Company, together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December 2017.

The Group's revenue was HK$364,401,000 (2016: HK$359,035,000).
Profit for the year was HK$19,283,000 compared to HK$14,622,000
in 2016. Earnings per share was HK$0.097 (2016: HK$0.073).

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2017. The Group’s total dividend for the
year ended 31st December 2016 amounts to HK$0.02 per share.

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 9th May
2018 (2018 AGM").

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
periods from 4th May 2018 to 9th May 2018, both days inclusive
and during which period no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and
vote at the 2018 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2018 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company's branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3rd May 2018.

Business Review

The Group's revenue increased by 1.5% to HK$364 million in this
financial year. The increase in revenue was mainly due to good
performance of US market segment. Revenue in terms of sales mix
was stable when compared with that of last year. Sales of power
cords and power cord sets, cables and wires, wire harnesses and
plastic resins accounted for 58%, 9%, 31% and 2% of the Group's
total revenue respectively.

The Group's operating environment is improving slightly. The
moderate growth in US household appliance market performance
led to increase in sales in US market segment. During the year, the
copper price stop declining and started to increase and thus had
a positive effect on the determination of the selling price of the
Group's products. But on the other hand, there is an increase in
the minimum level of wages in Shenzhen City, from RMB2,030 to
RMB2,130 effective 1st June 2017. As a result, the gross margin
remained stable when compared with that of last year. The net
margin increased from 4.1% in 2016 to 5.3% in 2017. The increase
in net margin was mainly due to net revaluation gain of properties
and government subsidy.
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The challenge for the Group is to recruit sufficient number of
labors for the Dongyuan factory and at the same time avoids the
unnecessary wage premium due to competition for labors. Apart
from monetary incentives, non monetary staff welfare like free Wifi
service and rooms for couple are provided in our dormitory. Another
challenge is to manage the taxation risk arising from transfer
pricing. The Group has many intercompany transactions among
US, Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam (the “Countries”). During
the year, the Group was required to make an additional HK$1.6
million regarding transfer price tax adjustment. With introduction of
more sophisticated transfer pricing regulations in the Countries, it
is foreseeable that tax authorities will be more active in challenging
transfer pricing arrangement. In response, the Group will review its
operations structure and work closely with relevant tax experts.

Regarding the Group’s ESG performance, please refer to the
Group's ESG report on page 11 to 34.

Future Prospect

The Group is desirous of moving some capital intensive production
to the Dongyuan factory from old factory in Shenzhen City and
intend to redevelop the existing plant of Dongyuan factory. The
pace of redevelopment is geared with the recruitment of suitable
electric wire specialists and sufficient number of labors. As the
recruitment result is not satisfactory, the pace of redevelopment
will be slow down.

Regarding the factory construction in Quang Ngai, Vietnam, the
construction will be divided into three phases. The Group has
entered into a construction contract with a local contractor through
tendering process to construct the phase | construction works. The
expected completion date is 12th July 2018. The phase | factory
will be used for producing harness products, which are more labor
intensive. For details of the transaction, please refer to Company's
announcement dated 12th January 2018. The Group will exercise
caution in its investment in overseas manufacturing facilities.

For our old factory in Shenzhen City (“Shenzhen Factory”), the
Group has constantly received enquiries regarding its future
development plan. In the foreseeable future, the Group still retains
a certain level of production in the Shenzhen Factory. However at
the same time, the Group will look for any opportunity to realize its
intrinsic value. In order to pave the way for its development, the
Group will restructure the property ownership so that the Group's
properties in the Shenzhen City will all be owned by a wholly
owned subsidiary in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EREHRE(E)

Corporate Governance

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights and
enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result, the Group
has established the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere to
the best practice.

Social Responsibility

The Group’s factories are regularly subject to factory audit by
multinational enterprises. The factory audit served as a catalyst to
enhance the Group's standard on corporate social responsibility.

Moreover, the Group holds a strong belief in corporate social
responsibility. So the Group continues to participate in and support
community activities in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thanks to our loyal
shareholders, partners and customers for their continuous support
and to our staff for their dedication.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st December 2017, the consolidated short-term
indebtedness of the Group was approximately HK$37,621,000.
The borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The bank
balances and cash amounted to approximately HK$68,621,000.

As at 31st December 2017, the Group's trade and bill receivables
balance was approximately HK$80,682,000, representing 22.1% of
the year's revenue of approximately HK$364,401,000. The Group
adopted a stringent credit policy to minimize credit risk.

The interest cover in 2017 was 26.5 times as compared to 17.5
times in 2016.

Capital Structure

As at 31st December 2017, the consolidated shareholders’ equity
of the Group was approximately HK$562,417,000, representing
an increase of 11.5% over that of the previous year. The debt to
equity ratio, calculated by dividing total liabilities to shareholders’
equity, was approximately 23.2%.

Capital Expenditure and Material
Acquisitions

During the year under review, capital expenditure approximate to
HK$6,291,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31st December 2017, the Group's trade and loan finance
facilities amounted to approximately HK$226,000,000, and of
which HK$186,000,000 were secured by legal charges over certain
land and buildings and investment properties of the Group with a
total net book value of HK$178,020,000.

Segment Information

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and Mainland
China continued to be the Group's major markets, accounting
for approximately 32%, 50% and 15% of the Group’s total sales
respectively. The remaining 3% of sales were generated from
customers located in Europe and other countries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE R R (48)

Employees’ Remuneration Policy

As at 31st December 2017, the Group employed 1,032 full time
management, administrative and production staff worldwide.
The Group follows market practice on remuneration packages.
Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined by senior
management annually depending on the employee’s performance,
experience and industry practice. The Group invests in its human
capital. In addition to on-job training, the Group adopts policies of
continuous professional training programs.

Foreign Exchange Exposure
All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are
appropriately managed and hedged, if necessary.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31st December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

About this Report

This report is the environmental, social and governance (ESG)
report prepared by Perennial International Limited (“Perennial”, the
“Company”, “we" or "us” and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide published by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The report covers all the entities
which the Group has control over or material impact on their
financial or actual operation process, including various business
departments in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, and Heyuan. Unless
specified otherwise, the period involving the figures and content of
the report would be 1st January to 31st December, 2017.

The figures and case studies of this report mainly come from
the statistical reports and internal communication documents of
the Company. The Board of the Company undertakes that there
are no misrepresentations or misleading statements contained
in this report, and assumes responsibilities for the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of its content. Upon confirmation by
the management, the report was approved by the Board on 20th
March 2018.

For any enquiry on the report, please email to info@perennialcable.com.

Environmental, Social and Governance of

Perennial

The Group manufactures and trades quality power cords and
related products, and sells such products to renowned producers
of electrical and electronic products in different continents. The
operation of the Group may affect the environment, labor, business
partners and communities. While pursuing profit-making, the Group
strives to reduce its impact on the environment and stakeholders
and even create more value, by establishing management systems
on environmental protection, protection of workers’ rights and
interests, product quality and social welfare.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Stakeholder Communication

Since the Group's business operation may affect its shareholders,
governments, employees, customers and suppliers, such
stakeholders may have expectations and opinions on Perennial’s
operation and strategies. To balance the interest of various parties,
we need to ensure effective communication with our stakeholders
and take their appeals into account during the Group’s operation.
Hence, we have prepared the management procedure on
stakeholder communication and adopt appropriate communication
channels according to different characteristics of our stakeholders,
so that information can be delivered in a timely and smooth fashion
and our system can run effectively. The Group has maintained
sound two-way communication with its stakeholders, with means
of communication specified as follows:

Stakeholder Group Means of Communication

Shareholders — Regular announcements

— Annual general meetings

Government — Appointments
Employees — Formulating an work appraisal system
— Setting up suggestion boxes
— Direct email communication with the
management staff
Customers — Customer satisfaction survey
— Regular communication (by means of
telephone, site visit and business dinner)
— After-sales service
Suppliers — Continuous follow-up and evaluation of

suppliers
— Regular communication (by means of
telephone, site visit, business dinner)

Charity Partners — Active contact
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

Material Issues on Environmental, Social and
Governance

In order to effectively sort out the environmental, social and
governance issues that are relevant and important to Perennial,
an independent consultant was engaged last year to conduct
materiality assessment in accordance with the requirements of
ESG Reporting Guide issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
during which our staff, customers and suppliers were invited to
express their opinions. This year, although the Company established
new plant in Dongyuan County, Heyuan City, no material change
occurred to the business of the Group and the markets where its
operation was located. Upon careful consideration, the Board have
decided to follow the material issue list of last year, and sustained
its strategic ESG directions. Such significant issues and their
relevance to the Group are summarized as follows:

Environmental

EENRR  HERELEE
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Employment

BB & &
Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group
BE B ER R 2 AR 1] BB ER S 2 AR
Energy The Group consumes energy in Occupational The production personnel face certain

conservation

Waste disposal

Water resources
management

KEREE

machine operation and lighting,
during the production process.

SETELERET 2 MERARS
He2s MRAA o

During the production process, the
Group produces various wastes,
some of which are hazardous and
require proper handling.

S A E B2 G E A S ERER
BABEEEEY  BEZEES -

The Group utilizes municipal water in
some of its production phases.

SEER D EERGBTPRERTHOK ©

health and safety

BEREZE

Labor and human
rights regulations

BB RABER

Staff training

BT

health and safety risks when they are
working on the production lines. The
Company is responsible for the work
safety of its staff members.
HEABREAER FTERSHEEE
FlRERZZRAR - AEEEERE
BITERR

The operation of the Company
must comply with local laws and
regulations. We particularly stress
the provision of statutory protection
and rights for our staff.
NRIMEENAREEMEERE
B BALEERALTRIETR
P& Se AR o

Our staff training helps enhance
product quality and production
efficiency.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Environmental

R HgRERmE(E)

Employment

Bi5 EE
Issue Relevance to the Group Issue Relevance to the Group
R BRE AR 2 HRE M BRE BB AR 2 HEE M
Material recycling  Since the Group produces various Employment Various business development plans
wastes during the production relationship of the Company are closely linked to
process, the reuse of wasted recruiting and retaining staff. Building
materials can reduce land pollution. good employment relationships and
positive employer image is conducive
to hiring and retaining talents.
PIEHEIR SETLEERBEPSEESEER - EREER NRAIFEXBEETEMETEAL

Packaging materials

2

fat

W

M

TRIR{E R BERL AR A L1005 2

As the Group must use packaging
materials to deliver products, such
materials may become wastes after
delivery.

SEEEXE M MAE R BEM
o FRERM B EHRERE IS
PR ASRERY

Environmental
regulations and
impact

RBER T E

EVHRE M B EAERE - B RIFH
REBE EYRFBINTR -8
BhIRES AR BB AT ©

The operation of the Company

must comply with local laws and
regulations. We particularly stress
the possible environmental impact of
our production bases.
NAEMEENATE EMEVERE
B BPILCESEREES MR
BRI E
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Operation
¢
Relevance the Group

SEER S E 2 HE M

Issue

B3

Community
HE
Relevance the Group

SEEREE 2 HR M

Product quality

e
1]
i
fin

Customer
relationship

EPRF

Anti-corruption

Customers expect to purchase quality
and safe products. Product quality
and safety are the foundations for
keeping the faith of our customers.

BEHNERBELANRENER  E
mEENZEERBEFBERTELZE
EO

Maintaining good customer relations
brings stable income streams and
corporate development for Perennial
Group.

HRNEPHBERAISEHNEEAR
RENWATRME R

The operation of the Company

must comply with local laws and
regulations. Business ethics stands
as the foundation for the Company's
reputation.
NRINEENETA
o EEEEREE

ARbHERE
AREBZEFR -

Community
investment

HERA

Supply chain
management

HrERER

Committed to serving as a company
of integrity, the Group sustains

its participation in and support of
community activities in Hong Kong
and China.
REBERBHMEODENES - AT
HIFE2 RN FEELPEOH
BEH -

As its suppliers may affect the
environment during their operation,
Perennial is responsible for
supporting the suppliers with better
environmental performance.
HEmRSEFNGHIREENTE
BHEEEFRERRRENHE
7g o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Environmental

Environmental Management Procedures

We strive to perfect our environmental management system, so
as to comply with the “Environmental Protection Law"” ((3RIZ{R7E
7E)) and its series of environmental regulations in Mainland China
and meet the expectation of our stakeholders. The “Environmental
Procedure” ((3E1E 12 7)) of Perennial Group provides a guideline
on the assessment, monitoring and control of resource and
energy usage, solid wastes, environmental pollutants and other
environmental indicators for each department. The Environmental
Procedure” also specifies the responsibility of the staff members
of the Group, in a bid to enforce such environmental concepts in
every aspect of the operation. We can make timely correction and
implement preventive measures by maintaining our understanding
of environmental impact, assessing the implementation of
environmental objectives and indicators, verifying environmental
management plans and the efficacy of the execution of such
procedures.

In addition, the Group’s production base in Shenzhen has joined
the Shenzhen Carbon Emission Right Trading Market in accordance
with the requirements of “Provisions of Carbon Emissions
Management of the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone” ({4 31| &8
EERBEIEIRE THT) and “Interim Measures of Shenzhen
Municipality for the Administration of Carbon Emission Permits
Trading” (ORINTHHRBEMAER 5 BB E 1795 )). We, therefore,
would perform audit on the carbon emissions of the plant.

Pollution Prevention and Treatment

The "Environmental Pollution Prevention and Control Procedures”
of the Group is designed to control the waste water, exhaust, solid
wastes and noise generated during its operation, so as to meet
the legal requirement of environmental protection and mitigate the
direct impact on the environment caused by our operation.

R HgRERmE(E)

T

5

RREERRF

BN REERBEEER - UERET B A IA
(REFRELDBEIN—FINREER - LA SR
S AL - BRI ENCRIBIZRF )RS E S8
HERERER - BEERYIIRFSRMTAIR
BHEEE - BRI BIREES] - GRERF )T
PRIERTE TEMEBMABNBE - SREESER
A BELERAT - BERFERBZENTHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

The solid waste generated in production sites, warehouses and
offices are stored and processed by categorizing the waste as
“Recyclable”, “Non-recyclable”, and “Hazardous Wastes"”. The
above wastes are disposed of by professional and qualified waste
treatment handling organizations. The following table sets out the
amount of waste generated and processed by the Group in 2017:

REELEERS 88 BAEMEEMNERER
Y o I AIEY ] [RRI B R kR o 10 #fF
M RIE o PA_ETERRE R M) ER XX th B TR A] M E
ZYRIEHBRIE - NTREIIRBE20177FRE
ENBEENERMBE

Amount Collected 20175

and Processed in R

Waste Category! Unit 2017 BEEYEE By REHE
Waste paper Tonne 417 FEAR NI} 41.7
Reusable plastic Tonne 175.8 RAINRZR NI 175.8
Waste copper Tonne 26.6 =R NI 26.6
Waste wires Tonne 161.4 BEEAR N 161.4
Hazardous wastes Tonne 12.3 JER NI 12.3

The exhaust generated during the operation of the Group includes
soot from its canteens, dust from the workshops of the plastic
production workshop, and harmful gases. The Group generates a
small amount of such gases, which meet the emission standard
under national regulations after adsorption treatment. In addition,
we regularly review whether the purchased plastic, rubber
and materials with organic elements would release gases that
damage the ozone layer during our production process or after
decomposition. For disqualified materials, we would carry out
rectification till they meet relevant requirements.

No waste water is generated during our production. In respect
of domestic sewage, we commissioned a qualified engineering
company to undertake a domestic-sewage environmental-
protection treatment work according to the first grade of “Discharge
Limits of Water Pollutants” ({7K;5 2 ¥ 8E PR (& )) of Guangdong
Province years ago. The work treats the sewage from canteen and
dormitories, so as to fulfill the effluent standards. Waste water
from toilet is treated in septic tanks before being discharged to
the municipal sewer network. During the regular cleaning of septic
tanks, we supervise every step taken by our contractor in an effort
to prevent secondary pollution caused by such sewage.

Certain machines in the Group’s plants emit noises. We regularly
test the noise level in primary workplaces in accordance with the
requirements of the “Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises
Noise at Boundary” ({ T % 7> 2 i SRR 2 1Z %)) of the People's
Republic of China. We have not identified any noise from our plants
which exceeds the limit and affect the nearby communities. For
workplaces with noise levels that exceed the standard, the Group
requires its operators to wear ear plugs to reduce the effect of
noise on human body.

! Waste lead bars and tin residues are also recyclable. Nevertheless,
due to their small amount, we do not make such disclosure in this
report.

BHEESEBREMELNERRREREME - 2
BHEBNE BERE - UIFREBIELEDN
= AR IER - BEREEDBIZUAR E R EE
BIRZE - 551 WS ERERERNERE B2
REBEHMITENYH - EEEBRIET WD RE
SRBHENRAEBRZNRE - I HTE
BPETERENTSmE R BIEIES -

HAEBRETIWEEERK - £J5)5KTH - /M
ZERMBEREEBNIREAMKBERECOKS
AYPERRIE) — BB ERMLIAS/KIRBAET
B RERERE  BEFTHNEK  UREIIEZ
o QIFTSK AL EBRIE - BHRETRE
B EHREREME  RAISEEARTNE—
TEZP8E - B LIS AER Z IR »

AFBERE FHERTRLRE « RMBEREA
RAME( TR0 EHRRRITEORTES - £
BRAEEHHROREAT « BEREERRIEA
TRUMT - BHEEMIOHERRTE - $R
BIERBBIEN TIESH - ARMTESEEA
ENERSEE BERSHARHYE -

L BHERESETATEKERY  EHER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Energy Conservation
The Group relies on externally purchased electricity as the main

source
energy

of energy to power its production machinery and provide
for its dormitories. The Group also consumes diesel and

gasoline to power forklift trucks and motor vehicles. The Group

strives

to increase the energy efficiency in general, which mainly

focuses on lighting, heating and indoor temperature adjustment:

During
energy

All the plants of the Group are built in the principle of north-
south orientation to enhance indoor ventilation and reduce
the demand for indoor air-conditioning.

Energy-saving light tubes are adopted for the luminaires
inside the plants, while outdoor road lights are equipped
with T00W LED light bulbs. In addition, our Heyuan plant,
which was completed in 2016, also harness solar energy to
power enclosure lamps, saving approximately 8,340 kWh
per year.

The residual heat of the air compressors is used for
supplying hot water in dormitories.

the reporting year, the Group had 7,831 MWh of indirect
consumption (which represents all the electricity purchased

from external parties) and 681 MWh of direct energy consumption,

averagi

ng 627 kWh of energy consumed per tonne of output2. We

emitted 7,000 tonnes of CO2e3 of greenhouse gases, averaging
516 kilograms of CO2e emitted per tonne of output?.

Scope 1:

Scope 2:

This includes plastic pellets, wires, socket wires and extension
cords.

The total greenhouse gas emissions is the sum of greenhouse
gases emitted from Scopes 1 and 2, which is represented by
CO2e.

Greenhouse gas emission refers to the direct emissions from
fuel combustion of fixed and mobile sources, which includes
the Group’s diesel and gasoline consumption in this report. The
estimation method and emission coefficients are adopted with
reference to the “Specification and Guidance for Quantification
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Companies” ({1t
HBRERBEYINE(EFIIREARERIER) ) issued by the Market
Supervision Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality (FH| T 5 EEE
H2/eg).

Greenhouse gas emissions refers to indirect energy emissions,
which include the electricity purchased by the Group from
electricity companies. The estimation method is adopted with
reference to the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings in Hong
Kong” (2010 Edition) and the “Specification and Guidance for
Quantification and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions
of Companies” issued by the Market Supervision Bureau of
Shenzhen Municipality, whereas the emission coefficient for
purchased electricity is adopted with reference to the information
announced by CLP and the Department of Climate Change of the
National Development and Reform Commission of the People’s
Republic of China (#FEA RHFMEIEIZR EEMAEE S 2EL RIR
#FF])in 2017.

R HgRERmE(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

Reducing Resource Wastage

During its production, the Group mainly consumes raw materials
(copper wire, rubber and plastic), packaging materials and water.
As the products must comply with strict international quality
standards, the Company considers that there is no room for
reducing the consumption of raw materials, but efforts will be
made to minimize the wastage of raw materials. Used wire rubbers
would be shredded for reuse in products which do not require high
performance (such as protectors for plugs) or recycled by third
parties in order to reduce dumping. As for the production water of
our workshops, we reuse it via recirculation tanks, enabling us to
save more than 10,000 m3 of water for the whole year.

BOERRE
BHEEELEBET T ERANERRENH
(4R - BB RIEH) - BRI RK - RIS
H - FEMPETEBEBNERLDERE  RAR
RIYERLOAENER  EEFENREREME
FRBNERBRERITHERE » N —LEEERT
SHIE mT (AESEPT AV ERIE) BIRER - 32
LHE=JTETEW - OB EE - st ERNE
ERK  BEBREERIOL - SEERKERHF
A 2FAEHKIBILITARNRE -

Amount of
Indicator of Consumption in
Resource Consumption Unit 2017 ERFEREEZ B 2017 A&
Water consumption m3 85,650 FEKE STJ3K 85,650
Water consumption density FHEES"
per tonne of output’ ms/tonne 6.3 BRk=E ST AR 6.3
Packaging material BEYR
— consumption of —HEEFERAE A 307.4
cardboard boxes Tonne 307.4
Packaging material B YR
— plastic consumption Tonne 31.5 —BRBRERE AW 315

Staff

As at 31st December 2017, the Group employed approximately
1,032 staff members, who mainly work on management, sales
and marketing, shipping, procurement, finance and accounting,
engineering, production and manufacturing. Regarding our
staff as the foundation of success and development, we take a
people-oriented approach to manage human resources (“HR"),
and formulate HR policies with a strategy to respect our staff's
personality, protect their dignity and emphasize communication.

8T

R-Z—+F+-_A=+—0 EHEEEBD
1,02%8T FEZEHEERE - HEMTHHEE
M B B Kk ER  IRMEESIE-
PRE T ARRIKINERNER  BBEBITAAL
KT EEBANER  WABEAR  #HEE
B EREBNERETEANEREE -



Annual Report 2017 R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Employment Policy

The Company formulated its employment policy based on the
“Labour Law"” ({4 &)%) and the “Labour Contract Law” ((4&&
[A13%)) of the People’s Republic of China as well as other relevant
regulations and actual situations, to serve as the basis of staff
remuneration and benefits. We pay social insurance premiums for
our staff members and offer them benefits such as annual leave,
meal, lunch subsidies, accommodation and workwear. Perennial
has a minimum wage system in place, and adjusts the employee’s
salary based on its revenue and individual performance from time
to time. A piece-rate remuneration system is in place for production
line workers who can earn more from extra work. Standard wage
of the staff is not lower than the local minimum level. For those
who work overtime on workdays, weekends and statutory holidays,
the wage is 1.5 to 3 times the hourly basic rate of pay.

During the recruitment process, we verify the identity and age of
the candidates, to prevent employing child labor4. At the same time,
we stick to the principle of equal opportunities to recruit talents on
meritorious basis, and forbid any discriminatory treatment based on
gender, age and race.

R HgRERmE(E)

EBEBEER

NEIABRCE L)  (BEAREISHEEES -
HELEBRBR - BIF] TEBEER - (BB ETH
FIHEBAKFHER - B A8 THMTRE
B WABTREFER  HH@EE - kR - TEH
8 (F78 « TREEF - BHBITRELERES
B URBECELERRNEATRRR T8
HWHETE - FESE T TEBTZ2L 2B
BHHIE - EEIZETEMERNEHRETEZE -
RIER - REBXEEBA I - AJESERR
$H1553ETE -

B ISR RIS SORIEE 0 59 R - DD
IHEMET - F8s - BFETTSHERAMA
MEST o EUAZE LAEAEAER] - b RIERNER
i -

Number of Staff EIHE

By Gender RERE D

Male 445 2] 445
Female 587 2 587
By Ranking RE&E D

Senior 8 =k 8
Intermediate 62 Hr AR 62
Junior 962 R 962
By Age RFRED

<30 239 <30 239
30-50 749 30-50 749
>50 44 >50 44

4 This refers to any individual less than 16 years of age.

4 BEA] K55 16 JERA £
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

Staff Care and Communication

We also hold staff activities to boost their sense of belonging to
the Group. Each year, we distribute red packets to and arrange
additional meals for our staff at the annual commencement
ceremony (B IZ#), and organize annual dinner at our
respective places of operation on the eve of the Spring Festival,
to acknowledge the staff's hard work over the year. Singing and
dance performances, lucky draws and an award ceremony to
commend outstanding staff of the year are arranged at the annual
dinner.

We have established communication channels and mechanism,
such as suggestion boxes, to solicit advice on different parts of
business from employees. Once the advice or proposal is deemed
by the Company as constructive or adopted by the department
concerned, the proposer will be recognized and rewarded.

Development and Training Opportunities

The Company has an appraisal system to assess staff's work
performance regularly. Upon such assessment, members of staff
will receive rewards equivalent to their performance, and continue
to improve their quality of work.

In order for our staff members to utilize their talent and meet
their job requirements and challenges, we offer them internal
and external training opportunities. Each department will provide
training based on its annual training needs and the annual training
scheme of the Company. The Administration Department will
assess the effectiveness of the training of each department.

ETHERBEE

B EENPE TS - AR E TME AN
BR - RONESFHOHTER TS @I ML
B g - WEFRHR RS2 ENMBRFR -
NEHB T —FNE D - RERERANERE -
MBELBERFEEFE T RYEEFRE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Fresh employees are required to receive orientation programs to
understand the Company's background, rules and regulations,
work positions, product identification, quality policy, restriction
of hazardous substances (“RoHS"), occupational safety, etc.
The Company will also arrange training courses on ISO basics,
onsite management, fire safety and first aid, according to each
department’s functional and technical demands.

Number of Training Hours for Employees?®

R HgRERmE(E)

BB THARZ ARG UTRARESR
MEBIE - TEMA - Hamdkd  S8BX -
ROHS » BIXZ2FNA - AAIMERES TN
BRREAN ST LR R - LR ANISORMERIE -« IR
B OHD R RUEIFRIE o

BEFHIZINEFEE

By Gender EHERIB S
Male 29.2 hours s 292/
Female 30.4 hours 7 30.4/\FF
By Ranking R AR S5
Senior 85.0 hours =% 85.0/\FF
Intermediate 34.4 hours e 34 .4/ \E
Junior 29.7 hours AR 29.7/\BF
Occupational Safety and Health BEZERER

We attach great importance to the safety and health of our staff.
Apart from complying with the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Work Safety” ({2 A R £ F1B % 2 £ & X)), the
“Regulations of Guangdong Province on Work Safety” ({ EH & &
2 4 E &I )) and relevant regulations, we offer our staff a safe
working environment by formulating safety policies, objectives,
management systems and operational procedures. The
“Management Regulation on Production Safety” (4£EZ2E IR
Z4I|[Z)) of the Company sets out the responsibilities of the Production
Safety Committee, respective departments and the personnel
for production safety management. We conduct regular test on
production safety responsibility for our workshops, and offer
comprehensive safety training to the staff during our quarterly
production safety meetings, in order to establish a sound safety
production responsibility system.

5 The figures represent the total number of training hours by
employment category divided by the number of staff members who
received training and were still employed by Perennial Group as at
31st December 2017.

BMERETHESREMEE - T ERBMT
(FEARANMBZE2EER) (BRELELEE
GBI FHEER - RAVBEBHIFIZ 278 B
% BEEHIRMRERE  RETRHE—(EALEH
TERIR - RRIMKAEEREEEREHIEIRE T
RELEZES  SAHNFNZELEEEAEN
BE - BMeEMEEESRIEFL L2 4EEREEE
%o YRNFELZELEEMSFHE TETEZENG
2EI NEIRENTEEERSERE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

To manage dangerous chemicals and oil products, we have
formulated the “Management Procedures for Dangerous
Chemicals and Oil Products” ({2 &% & MdmEREF)), to
prevent the adverse effects on our personnel and the environment
during procurement, transportation, storage, utilization and
disposal. We require our dangerous-chemicals management
personnel to receive training to learn the storage and management
knowledge on corresponding dangerous goods. The personnel are
also accompanied by our safety management personnel when such
management takes place.

We have also set up the “Emergency Preparedness and Response
Procedures” ({ Jf& & “E & B1 & JB % #| #2 7 )) in which we set out
contingency plans and handling measures to avoid accidents such
as fire, typhoon, rainstorm and hazardous material leakage, or to
timely address accidents and minimize their impact. We offer our
staff safety education via bulletin boards. Every year, members of
our staff are trained and drilled to tackle emergencies and enhance
their safety awareness and the ability to deal with incidents. We
hosted two fire drills in June and December this year respectively,
distribute protection gear regularly, and perform regular check
and rectification works to eliminate safety hazards and maintain
workplace safety.

During the reporting year, we recorded no work-related fatalities,
but a loss of 188.5 work days reduced due to work-related injuries.

Operation

We are attentive to customer opinion, meet their demands,
and actively establish good and regulated partnerships with our
suppliers to improve product quality.

Product Quality

Our requirement on material quality is the reason why our various
products are recognized by different countries. The Group uses
wires with at least 99.96% of copper content, which allow our
products to have high energy efficiency. Other raw materials
are also required to meet product safety and environmental
requirements, such as RoHS. Further, we have explicit and
stringent quality control procedures to ensure quality and safe
products for our customers. We have formulated the “Control
Procedures for Remedial Actions and Precautions” ({4} iIF A1 7& [
& he 5 % F2 7)) to provide precautionary and remedial actions for
unqualified products. All products undergo thorough inspections,
and will only enter the next process after passing quality inspection.

s 2mbamlommER - RFHIET TUEER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

The Company's “Safety and Reliability Policy” ({ & 2 #1 7] 5 Ik
%)) are designed to ensure that products meet the requirements
of safety accreditation institutions. The Policy also requires the
provision of a guide on safe usage, so that the users can use
the Company’s products with the proper safety practice. All the
cables and power cords must pass high-voltage safety testing on
production lines, and the testing center of the Company will also
conduct reliability test on sample materials and final products, such
as aging rubber and pull-force test. During the reporting year, no
products sold or delivered were recalled due to safety and health
concerns.

For unqualified products, we require preliminary remedial measures
within 24 hours upon the identification of such problems. Should
the issue involve multiple departments, the principal responsible
department shall convene a cross-departmental quality meeting
with relevant departments to discuss and work out solutions before
addressing the matter. If the products are still not up to standard
after such handling, we will dispose of such problematic products
and consider revising the ancillary quality system.

Upon receiving a customer complaint, the responsible staff of
the Quality Control Department would analyze and follow up the
complaint. We require the department to contact the customer
concerned within 24 hours after receiving the complaint, identify
the causes within 3 working days, formulate remedial actions and
submit the solutions and results to relevant staff within 7 working
days, before confirming the solution with the customer. In addition
to solving the existing problems raised by the customer, we also
conduct follow-up checks on 3 batches of similar types of products
after improvement, in order to prevent recurrence of the same
problem. We distribute satisfaction survey forms to our customers
in the fourth quarter each year, to collect their views on the
Company’s products in respect of quality, service, delivery time,
etc. Notwithstanding small number of complaints regarding product
appearance (9 cases in total), all of them were properly handled
according to the customer complaint handling procedures.

Confidential Information of Customers and
Intellectual Property

The Group often gains access to trade secrets and non-public
technical information in the course of business. We are well
aware of our obligation of confidentiality, and we have established
a stringent system of confidentiality within the Company. Staff
must comply with the relevant requirements of the Company
and perform the corresponding duty of confidentiality. We would
impose punishment on any breach of the confidentiality system in
accordance with the “Labor Contract Law” and relevant laws.

R HgRERmE(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

To protect our intellectual properties, we are entitled to applying
for patents for all the inventions, creations, technical innovations,
products or formulas during our service. On the other hand, we
do not infringe other companies’ intellectual properties. If any
infringement is discovered, the staff concerned would be subjected
to severe punishment.

Supply Chain Management

To ensure the selected suppliers can meet our demands on
materials and production, we have prepared the “Procurement
Procedures” ((£LEEF2FF)) to standardize the procurement process.
In selecting suppliers, we assess the supplier's company
background, product quality, price, quality and environmental
management system. We conduct simple monthly assessment for
our existing suppliers. Our general manager can decide whether
to disqualify the suppliers with poor performance and of no
improvement. As required by the Chinese customs, our suppliers
are required to undergo trade safety investigation.

As the Company emphasizes supplier's environmental
performance, we inspect or appraise the environmental conditions
of our suppliers according to the “Environmental Management
Procedures for Stakeholders” ( (Fz=iE T IRIBERREFF) ) and
the ISO 14001 environmental management system, and
demand such environmental conditions. We have the following
environmental requirements on our suppliers:

- Provision of environmentally-friendly products which cause
no adverse impact to the environment

- Proper handling of all types of gases, liquid and solid wastes
produced during production

- Application of clean production technology

- Minimal application of dangerous raw materials during
production

- Minimal use of packaging materials

- Minimal exhaust emission and noise pollution by motor
vehicles or during production

- Compliance with relevant requirements of the Company
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Should the supplier fail to comply with our requirements regarding
environmental protection, relevant departments will demand for
correction, and if necessary, leaders from both parties will hold
meetings to work out a solution. The supplier will be disqualified
if the cases are considered to be serious. We also conduct onsite
environmental assessment on the supplier, request for and follow
up the improvement. The environmental investigation result of our
suppliers can serve as the assessment basis for qualified suppliers.

R HgRERmE(E)

BHERAERERMOBRES  BHEBHAEH
iR PANEES: - LB h e SRR 7
PEMI® - REE RIS RIS BB A TS o B
EEHTMETERRETE B RBENEE
Sk - gHIER IR B E AR T e A AR Em T
ki -

Number of Suppliers HEREE

By Region RibEE S

Hong Kong 35 &E 35

Mainland China 120 R A D 120

Overseas 11 ANES 11
Code of Conduct BRERST

To ensure that the Company complies with regulations relating to
bribery prevention, we execute reward and punishment measures
for staff to adhere to business ethics and cultivate a clean corporate
culture. The Company requires all its staff members to sign the
agreement to comply with the “Code of Conduct” ( GEE(RE) )
when they join the Company. Sales and procurement staff are also
required to declare any connection and potential conflict of interest
with the existing suppliers or customers. The Company also
engages an internal audit consultant to assist the Group to perform
the review of the effectiveness of internal control measures, and
implement other management measures to maintain the Company
requirements on code of conduct. During the reporting year, no
cases of corrupt practices occurred.

Charitable Activities

The Company supports philanthropy and community development.
During the reporting year, we donated a total of HK$1,128,000 to
support the communities in need.

Our community investment covers a wide spectrum of areas.
In respect of education, we made donations to the student aid
programs of Guizhou Tongxin Guangcai Career Foundation (&M
B EEEESE) and Hunan Ningxiang No.1 Middle School
Education Foundation (& EH —F#%EE L), to enable
students with financial difficulties to go to school and change
their lives with knowledge. In addition, we support Sowers Action
to offer poor and disabled students in China opportunities to
learn. During the year, we also donated to Correctional Services
Children’s Education Trust.

RERARNG SRR LRERREDER - RIS
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NETEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

We pay attention to different needs of our society and promote
community health and gender equality by donating to Po Leung
Kuk, Police Welfare Fund, Concerted Efforts Resource Centre,
Hong Kong Single Parents Association, Lifeline Express and the
Women's Welfare Club (Eastern District) Hong Kong.

“Perennial Class” of Ningxiang No.1 Middle School
(248 — ), Hunan Province

“Perennial Class”, jointly organized by Perennial and Ningxiang
No.1 Middle School, offers junior high school graduates who have
excellent conduct and academic results but suffer from financial
difficulties an opportunity to continue their study and finish senior
high school education. Each year, we donate RMB300,000 to 30
students of “Perennial Class”, to subsidize their tuition and living
expenses. In the course of cooperation, we require Ningxiang No.1
Middle School to submit the expenditure report of the donations
at the end of each semester for our review, in an effort to fulfill
zero charge of Perennial Class and prevent student grants from
being discounted by other charges. Striving to deliver on such
student aid programs, Perennial not only offers financial support to
impoverished students, but emphasizes the quality of education
to cultivate great talents. By the end of each semester, Ningxiang
No.1 Middle School would report the study of these students to
us, to facilitate better follow-ups and understanding. Apart from
that, Perennial has set up a management committee for “Perennial
Class”, assigning personnel for supervision and management. We
pay close attention to the progress of “Perennial Class”, and timely
address the difficulties and problems during its course of operation.
This is a sustainable project in which we will continue to explore
the way of sponsorship, extend our social influence and offer more
help.

Future Prospect

In respect of the current development plan, Perennial will build
a plant in Quang Ngai Province, Vietnam. We expect our new
Vietnamese plant to grow into a major production base for the
Group in the long run. Since it is the Group’s first overseas plant,
the management is aware of the need to comply with local
environmental, labor and trading regulations in Vietnam, and has
reviewed the local compliance risks in environment, society and
governance thoroughly.

The plan of setting up a plant in Vietnam is based on the
consideration of labor cost. However, the Company will maintain
a certain extent of production and operation in its Shenzhen plant
for the foreseeable future. The Group will prudently consider the
impact on the existing staff during its further planning.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - g MERIME(E)

ERBI(RE - HEREAR
HiES)DARRS

Chapter(s)

General Containing —-REER 85

Disclosure Relevant BREAN THEERH

and KPIs Description Information Remarks RE i EH B

Environmental B

Aspect A1: Emissions BEA: FBY

General disclosure: —fHRE

Information on the policies and Environmental BEEALEZEREHN kRt BE

compliance with relevant laws and HEES  BERESEENMES

regulations that have a significant SR RETHEOAGEAY

impact on the issuer relating to air and EREEEERAIINER -

greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

KPIAL1 The types of emissions ~/ As the Company's BREN  HEMEEREBENR ADEZEBT
and respective business does BEA i BRAETRS
emissions data not involve the b 037 3 Qg

emission of air HELTHRE -
pollutants in large

amounts, such

figures are not

disclosed herein.

KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas Environmental BEEw  LERBReHNER BB
emissions in totaland - Energy 22 BE ~HHER
intensity Conservation

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste ~ Environmental HREN  MELEZEENEE BE
(in tonnes) produced - Pollution BEM3 CAETE) R(MER) -5
and, where appropriate,  Prevention and nE
intensity Treatment

KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous Environmental BREN MELEEZEENEE B3
waste produced (in - Pollution BEMA (CAETE)R(MER) —54a
tonnes) and, where Prevention and nE
appropriate, intensity Treatment

KPIA1.5 Description of measures  Environmental The Company's BREW  BUREHENENER RE UNIVAE 3N
to mitigate emissions - Pollution business does EEAS  RAERE —ARR  PRAEERA
and results achieved Prevention and not involve the ZIEHER -

Treatment emission of air
pollutants in large
amounts.

KPIA16 Description of how Environmental BREN HIREREREZE B3
hazardous and non- - Pollution BEMG  BUNAE REEE -REWA
hazardous wastes are  Prevention and ENERRAERE
handled, reduction Treatment

initiatives and results
achieved
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

Chapter(s)
General Containing ~BREER )
Disclosure Relevant BREN HHERN
and KPls Description Information Remarks e it ZH fBit
Aspect A2: Use of Resources BEA2: ERER
General Disclosure: —WHE
Policies on the efficient use of Environmental BRERERNEEK B3
resources.
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect ~ Environmental BREN RENESNERR/ BE
energy consumption - Energy BEM SEBRRME- & 008k
by type (e.g. electricity, ~ Conservation A EEE(UTET
gas or oil) in total (KWh REHE)REE
in'000s) and intensity
KPI A2.2 Water consumptionin  Environmental BREN BEKELEE 5
total and intensity - Reducing KEN.2 ~RAER
Resource BE
Wastage
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy ~ Environmental MREN  HlRERNEHE BE
use efficiency initiatives - Energy EZA23  RATERER ~HHER
and results achieved Conservation
KPIA2.4 Description of whether  Environmental BREN  HICKEERKELN RE
there is any issue in - Reducing KBB4 BEAME M&kﬁ —RIER
sourcing water thatis  Resource RKMa RGN RE
fit for purpose, water Wastage g
efficiency initiatives and
results achieved
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material  Environmental BIREN ZQFRIENEN B3
used for finished - Reducing EEns #s(EAE)R(  -HOBR
products (in tonnes) Resource BE)SEEENGE RE
and, if applicable, with  Wastage
reference to per unit
produced
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources EEA3 : BERAAER
General Disclosure: Policies on / As the Company's —BBE  REBTAUBRERRR / AR EBY
minimizing the issuer's significant business does BRENEATZMIE - THREERE
impact on the environment and natural not pose a ERERARE
resources. significant impact RSN E
KPIA31  Descriptionofthe onitssurounding  pEmEy  fiRREREEER / AVE B
significant impacts ecological KEAT RAERMEAYER BE -
of activities on the environment and ERRERARTEN
environment and natural the supply of 118

resources and the
actions taken to manage
them

natural resources,
no such disclosure
is made herein.
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RIE - g MERIME(E)

Chapter(s)

General Containing -REER 85

Disclosure Relevant BREN HHERN

and KPls Description Information Remarks e it ZH fBit

Social e

Employment and Labor Practices BREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment EMEB1: B

General Disclosure: Information on Staff - —RBE  EREMNEE BER BT

the policies and compliance with Employment B 1B BE - TEHE . -ERIR

relevant laws and regulations that Policy STt~ RIERM R E 58 R EH

have a significant impact on the issuer NHE s RETHRTABEATE

relating to compensation and dismissal, IR RABINER -

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by Staff - BgEN  miR EEER. BT
gender, employment  Employment REBL1  ERARINEENN —ERBR
type, age group and Policy EELH
geographical region

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate  / The figures BgEn  RUS EREIR WRE AR
by gender, age group are considered KEB12  HEBSHNEERA HE BT
and geographical region sensitive and not i it

disclosed herein.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety B2 : RERZ 2

General Disclosure: Information on the ~ Staff - —MBE  AERERETIERER BT

policies and compliance with relevant ~ Occupational REEREGRXULZNNE -  -BER2

laws and regulations that have a Safety and Health BTHEIABEATZENAREE RER

significant impact on the issuer relating RARGIER o

to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of Staff - BREN EIf@EmRCH  BI
work-related fatalites ~ Occupational BB BRUE -BER2

Safety and Health kiR

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work  Staff - BiREN FIGBEXIERE BT

injury Occupational 1128222 -BXR2
Safety and Health RfER

KPIB2.3 Description of Staff - BIREN HOMFONBERR BT
occupational health Occupational iRB23  RZIRN UREE -BRR:
and safety measures  Safety and Health BIREERA RfER

adopted, how they
are implemented and
monitored
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R - g hEARE(E)

Chapter(s)
General Containing ~BREER )
Disclosure Relevant BREN HHERN
and KPls Description Information Remarks e it ZH fBit
Aspect B3: Development and Training [EEB3 : BRERE
General Disclosure: Policies on Staff - —fE BERAEERTIE BRI
improving employees' knowledge and  Development BEONBREENEE - g -BERE
skills for discharging duties at work. and Training R ElliE3
Description of training activities. opportunities
KPI B3.1 The percentage of / Approximately BREN  RURREEERED SHETTIIL
employees trained by 75% of male staff 831 WXIIEEENL EKRAHTS% :
gender and employee and approximately THEETRI
category 83% of female LEXE A
staff received 83% °
training.
KPI B3.2 The average training Staff - MR RERIRESERE BT
hours completed per ~ Development KEB32 5 BREERAE -BERE
employee by gender and and Training TR e
employee category Opportunities
Aspect B4: Labor Standards [BEB4 : %]
General Disclosure: Information on the ~ Staff - —fRBE BEMEETSRAAT BT
policies and compliance with relevant ~ Employment MEE  RETHETABEAYE -EEIR
laws and regulations that have a Policy WREEERANER -
significant impact on the issuer relating
to preventing child and forced labor.
KPI B4.1 Description of measures ~ Staff - BRER ftkIABEAS BT
to review employment  Employment KB4 RENBSEIREE —EEIR
practices to avoid child  Policy 8T
and forced labor
KPI B4.2 Description of steps Staff - BREN HOEERERENE BI
taken to eliminate Employment HiEB42  EREEERATERY —EENE
such practices when Policy 58
discovered
Operating Practices BEED
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management [BMEBS : {HEHERE
General Disclosure: Policies on Operation - The Group has no —RBE: EEMEENREIME SE-fE S£EUETE
managing environmental and social risks  Supply Chain policy on managing BREE BER HrEET ek
of the supply chain. Management the social risks of M -
supply chains.
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by ~ Operation - BIREN HEESNEER  £8E
geographical region Supply Chain 52851 ¥A —fiEE
Management EE
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RIE - g MERIME(E)

Chapter(s)

General Containing ~BREER )

Disclosure Relevant BREN HHERN

and KPls Description Information Remarks e it EH fBit

KPI B5.2 Description of practices  Operation - BiREN HOBEEREERN €8
relating to engaging Supply Chain k2852 Bl mENTER  -{iEg
suppliers, number of Management EhmftEREE - ER
suppliers where the AR BBEMRHTR
practices are being BB
implemented, how they
are implemented and
monitored

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility [BEB6: EREM

General Disclosure: Information onthe ~ Operation — —HBE  BEMREERNRER 28

policies and compliance with relevant  Product Quality fErazs BE RERLEZE -EREZ

laws and regulations that have a URBRRENEE - REFHET

significant impact on the issuer relating NEERFEMNABAE AN

to health and safety, advertising, labeling BEfte

and privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of

redress.

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total Operation - BREY CEICEREREY 28
products sold or shipped Product Quality fEBe  PRZZBERERA -EnEE
subject to recalls for el
safety and health
reasons

KPI B6.2 Number of products Operation - BREN ZEEAERMRRR 28
—and service-related Product Quality 1512860  BFFENRELSE -EREZ
complaints received and
how they are dealt with

KPI B6.3 Description of practices  Operation - BREN HlRgERRENG 28
relating to observing and Confidential 2863  EERBHIEN -BERY
protecting intellectual  Information BRAAE
property rights of Customers B

and Intellectual
Property

KPI B6.4 Description of quality ~ Operation - MRy  RiESmTeRRk 2E
assurance process and  Product Quality KiEs64  ERDNER -EnEZ
recall procedures

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer  Operation - BIREM HUHBEANRER &8
data protection and Confidential KiZ865  FEHE NUREE  -BERES
privacy policies, how  Information BIRERRE ERMAME
they are implemented  of Customers B

and monitored

and Intellectual
Property
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RiE e RERME(E)

Chapter(s)
General Containing ~BREER )
Disclosure Relevant BREN HEERN
and KPls Description Information Remarks g it =1
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption EMEB7 : RES
General Disclosure: Information on the ~ Operation - Code —IRBE AR 9% 2E
policies and compliance with relevant  of Conduct MEFRARENIERETHEIA —EERT
laws and regulations that have a BEAYZHRBER LR
significant impact on the issuer relating B} o
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded ~ Operation - Code BN REREAHERIAL 2E
legal cases regarding  of Conduct KBy ERBROVCEREN -EERT
corrupt practices brought BSFARHNEER
against the issuer or its FDER
employees during the
reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
KPI B7.2 Description of Operation - Code BREn  FuhsREkER 48
preventive measures  of Conduct 12872 BB WREBRTR -BEERT
and whistle-blowing EXRE
procedures, how they
are implemented and
monitored
Community HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment [BMEBS : HERE
General Disclosure: Policies on Charitable —fRRE  BEMMELERTEE LRED
community engagement to understand ~ Activities ENEHREENRREEEEDE
the needs of the communities where ZREABHRMNEE ©
the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of Charitable BIREN SENERES NSy
contribution Activities 151288 1
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed  Charitable BREy CIIEEMDRER LnEd

to the focus area Activities 1512882
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

Perennial International Limited is firmly committed to statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness.

The Corporate Governance Code

The Directors confirm that the Company has fully complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code"”) attached to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as Appendix 14,
and adopted recommended best practices set out in the Code
whenever appropriate except Mr. Ma Chun Hon, Richard, who
was an Independent Non-Executive Director and resigned on 29th
December 2017, was unable to attend the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 27th April 2017 due to the business
engagements. During the year, Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, Chairman,
was unable to hold a meeting with the Independent Non-Executive
Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors due to
other prior business engagements.

The Board

The Board's primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity, due
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities include,
but not limited to, ensuring competent management, approving
objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring prudent
conduct of operations within laws and approved policies, ensuring
and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs. Day-
to-day management of the Group is delegated to the Executive
Directors or the officer in charge of each division who are given
clear directions as to his/her powers and are required to report back
to the Board. Functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management are reviewed periodically. The Directors, as members
of the Board, jointly share responsibility for the proper direction
of the Company. The Company has formal service contract with
each Director setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her
appointment.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE (8)

The Board (Continued)

The Board currently consists of eight (8) members whose details
are set out on pages 50 to 52 of this report. It meets quarterly and
holds specific meetings as and when they are deemed necessary.
The Board held four (4) meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2017. Notices of Board meetings were given to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to the date of the meetings with
the agenda and any accompanying Board papers sent at least
three days before the date of the meetings. All Directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings, recording
in sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
are kept by the Company Secretary and sent to the Directors or
the committee members (as appropriate) for their comment and
records within reasonable time after the meeting is held. They are
also available for inspection by the Directors at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. A record of the Directors’
attendance at Board meetings is set out on page 46 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to the Directors. The Directors are
also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group’s operational
facilities and meet with the management to gain a better
understanding of its business operations.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year, all Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs
Mon Chung Hung, Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, Mon
Tiffany, Koo Di An, Louise, Lau Chun Kay, Ma Chun Hon, Richard,
Lee Chung Nai, Jones and Chung Kit Ying, received regular
briefings and updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters. Materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
were provided to the Directors. They also attended regulatory
update sessions and seminars on relevant topics. All Directors are
requested to provide the Company with their respective training
record pursuant to the Code.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
and each Board Committee also has access to independent
professional advice where appropriate.
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The Board (Continued)

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of
the Chief Executive Officer. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman manages
the Board and is responsible for ensuring that adequate information
is provided to the Directors in a timely manner and all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings, while the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing strategies,
policies, and for conducting the Group's businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at each
annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-election.
Notwithstanding that the Non-Executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of one to three years, they are also subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as other
Directors do. To enhance accountability, any further re-appointment
of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who has served the
Board for more than nine years, is subject to a separate resolution
to be passed by the shareholders. In addition, Directors who are
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment
according to the Company’s Bye-laws.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
confirms receipt of a written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of his
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’'s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors should prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, with
supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary. The Board’s
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE (8)

Board Committees

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of them
having specific terms of reference, to consider matters relating to
specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where appropriate,
to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters. Details of these
committees and their principal terms of reference are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its current
members include three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors
and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock
Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices,
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and any
question of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditors; meeting
with the external auditors to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so by the
external auditors; reviewing the interim financial report and annual
consolidated financial statements before they are submitted to
the Board; discussing problems and reservations arising from the
interim review and final audit, and any other matters the external
auditors may wish to discuss, and reviewing the external auditors’
letter to the management and the management’s response;
considering any major investigation findings on internal control
and risk management systems matters as delegated by the Board
or on its own initiative and the management’s response to these
findings and reviewing arrangements which employees may use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control, risk management systems or
other matters.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year with the external
auditors. The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings during the
year ended 31st December 2017. An attendance record of its
members at the Audit Committee meetings is set out on page 46
of this report.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
financial report and the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2017 and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems and made
recommendations to the Board. Since March 2016, the Board
has engaged an outsourced consultant to perform internal control
review services for the Group.

The Audit Committee has full and direct access to the outsourced
internal audit consultant, reviews the reports on all audits
performed and monitors the audit performance. The Audit
Committee also reviews the adequacy of the scope, functions,
competency and resources of the outsourced internal audit
functions.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the Group's remuneration policies, determining the
specific remuneration packages for Executive Directors and
senior management, including terms of salary, discretionary
bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments and other long-term incentive schemes, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors and senior management. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee setting out its authority
and responsibilities are available on the Company’s website at
http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Remuneration Committee met once (1) in the year of 2017.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors. An attendance record of its members at the
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out on page 46 of this
report.
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PEERRE (8)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members include three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including,
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
backgrounds, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
on a regular basis, reviewing the candidates’ qualification and
competence and the policy on board diversity, assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-
appointment of Directors and the requirement on board diversity,
so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. Having
taken into account the above objective criteria, the Nomination
Committee was of the view that the Company has a diverse Board.
The revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
setting out its authority and responsibilities are available on the
Company’s website at http://perennial.todayir.com and the Stock
Exchange's website.

The Nomination Committee met once (1) in the year of 2017.
During the meeting, the committee members discussed the
procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them in
nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that such
criteria should include the candidates’ professional background,
their financial and commercial experience and their past track
record with other listed companies (if any). Candidates who satisfy
the relevant criteria are then short-listed by the chairman of the
Nomination Committee before their nominations are proposed
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
subsequently meets to select the final candidates and submit its
recommendation to the Board for its final approval. An attendance
record of its members at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out on page 46 of this report.
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Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November
2005. Its current members include four (4) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
corporate communication issued by the Company so as to ensure
compliance in every respect with the listing requirements contained
in the Listing Rules; and (i) reviewing transactions entered into by
the Company so as to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Company whether of Hong Kong
or elsewhere. To enhance corporate governance, the Compliance
Committee was also delegated with the responsibilities of (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(iii) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
Company’'s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures of
the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the year
ended 31st December 2017. During the meeting, the committee
members discussed the recent amendments to the Listing Rule
relating to corporate governance and resolved that more resources
should be allocated for meeting the increasingly stringent
requirements of the regulatory authorities. It was also suggested
all future amendments to the Listing Rules should be circulated to
members of the senior management so that they all understand
and can help the Company to comply with its obligations under the
Listing Rules and seminars on Listing Rules updates and corporate
governance practices should be arranged for members of the
senior management and other interested Directors. An attendance
record of its members at the Compliance Committee meeting is
set out on page 46 of this report.
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PEERRE (B)

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The Board has engaged an outsourced internal audit consultant
since March 2016, to perform independent internal control review
services. Thereafter, the outsourced consultant has assisted the
Group to perform a review of the effectiveness of internal control
system for certain selected processes. The assessment results
and proposed improvement recommendations were reported to
the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions and, in particular, consider
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function. Based on the findings of the
outsourced internal audit consultant and the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considers that the Group’s internal
control system is effective. Areas for improvement identified and
appropriate measures taken so as to provide assurance that key
business and operational risks are identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board has established to provide
effective internal control are as follows:

(a) a comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial
information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b) management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities
are documented and communicated; and

(c) system and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that
may have an impact on the Group.

A ERES I
BEEAEAEE 2 AW RBEME - B
IR LA L EEREREFRNHE - BRTF
BIEEEET s AR H A SEB 75 B RHERIBE Ak
Iz DARBRESTEAER  EREETE - %%
RBFUaER(ETREY)RETSHBEEARE -
BB s HR R o

A-T-AFZ A EREEET R
BEER - BUTB L ANELERR o bk 0 %
ShIRERIE BB A S MBS 42 P SNBSS T
REFOERE - FEERRAEREDNERER
BIER -

EXECERERZESNAKENRNERERR L
BRIEEL RN BHREREMEEEM R

e RS - HEMERIERIREREER - REFIZE
$EIE qu&EM‘%E#B%HE‘z ELHEMER - BTE
Ni&E - BlREMNAHERERE R  RIBS

%'JW*B%VEEFEJZEHE%%)QﬁﬁiA 2ZER

EX2ARAEE I AREEHERAN - LHER
—JE&EEE’JHJE&?”HXL B E AR E 2N
F75 M B R B RE R e AR MR IR o

i

5=

23

RAEREBETREEMELZ X RRFN

2

() BEZESATEESRS  NEREE
(BT A8 R AR 1Z R 5 1 T (L E 4R
RS 2 AR

() EERBEIBH - ERECBRERE -
BRI RRSFENER - R

(0) EBEMEFER  2E - B LIZEH
I_W C BEAREEALEEZRBES
8 mE - EK RE EEREES
J—llf*/\

o



Risk Management Function

The Group has established a robust risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and Senior
Management of the Group. The Board determines the nature and
extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring the
overall effectiveness of risk management. The Group identifies
key risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified
risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans
are then established by the risk owners to manage the risks to
acceptable level.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
The Audit Committee assesses the external auditors, taking into
account factors such as the performance and quality of the audit
and the objectivity and independence of auditors. The existing
auditors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers who were
first appointed in 1997.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Group was charged HK$1,460,000 and HK$2,034,000 by
PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31st December 2017. The non-
auditing services mainly consist of taxation services.

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Board has adopted generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong and complied with accounting standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and applied
consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 58 and 64 of this
annual report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
and employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, they had complied
with the required standards of the said code during the year.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to
the Company’s Bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. In
addition, shareholders who hold not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. The
requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists. If the Directors do
not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3)
months from the said date.

Moreover, shareholders who hold not less than one-twentieth
of the paid up capital of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to put forward
a resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at an annual general meeting. The Company shall not
be bound to give notice of the proposed resolution or circulate a
statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution to shareholders unless (a) a copy of the requisition
signed by the requisitionists, or two or more copies which between
them contain the signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited
at the registered office of the Company not less than six (6) weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one (1) week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition and (b) there is deposited or
tendered with the requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto. If, however,
after a copy of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the registered office of the Company, an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required as referred to above shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the
annual general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the
Company’s annual general meetings and are available to assist
the Directors in addressing queries from shareholders relating to
the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of their
auditors’ report.

For each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a
separate resolution would be proposed. Resolutions put to the
vote at any general meeting (other than those on procedural and
administrative matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding
the conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting, and questions (if any)
from shareholders regarding the voting procedures would be
answered.

Investor Relations

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand
its business better and the way the Company operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large,
the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive
information about the Company, its major businesses, financial
information and particulars of Directors are posted. The Company's
publications, including press releases, announcements, annual and
interim reports, shareholders circulars are being made available on
this website (http://perennial.todayir.com).

In addition, shareholders who have any enquiries regarding the
Company may send their enquiries in writing to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary who will then forward the same to the
Board and/or the relevant Board committees for response (where
appropriate). The above policy will be reviewed on a regular basis
to ensure effective communication with the shareholders.

Annual Report 2017 R

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEERME(E)

MR ER R ()
REFZBETIFIEREERAZEAKE(WE
JEARBELE) MARFEARBRRBFEAGADE
PR B © SMNEIZ BN TR B L AR R Z IR
BERS  THABSREELEZEEREZR
HEAET  HBEELERRZEM -

BERAE L ERESHERBYMNEE@ERLR
AR EEARRAS LREXRORER(EH
SRIEFRITREEERIN - ARURETA#
TROR - REBERBERASHGE - HERRHHA
BREXRNIEF - TELRERRMIERERREF
BRMEREMNE) -

REEBE
ARRRA > BOHRBRER T A RER 2 -
EHRRTBAAR 2 EERARAZEES -

RIBEERNTNBRER - NARBEBEMENE
BAARAE HX2EK  MEEHNEFFEE
Ao AR ARBITRGEERZ T - BEHE
o~ AE - FHREPHRE - REER EEHN U
ifi(http:/perennial.todayir.com) °

BESN - BRI AN B F A 5 - RIABEY
AREERAERXEARARANEENTELHEM
B EANRINMER - ARNERES BRI
FX 28RNk IEREFEES(RLERE
ST E ) ARF T8 o DA EBCRAS & BUE Bite A - A
PR R M B RURSE -

45



46 Perennial International Limited 1E&#fSE BB R A 7

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
PEERRE (8)

Directors’ Attendance at Board, Audit EENEES  EXEZET - HF
Committee, Remuneration Committee, ZEES . . BEELZET  EEFZFES
Nomination Committee, Compliance RBRAE 2 HERLE

Committee and General Meetings

Audit Remuneration  Nomination ~ Compliance

Board  Committee = Committee = Committee = Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EE® ERZEe §MzZEg E¥ZEE ERZEg BRR
g3 -E ] ez 23 23 g
Total number of meetings held EHZE-Z—+%5
during the year ended +-A=1+-H
31st December 2017 FFERETZ
SR 4 2 1 1 1 1
Number of meetings attended: [HE&E RE -
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. MON Chung Hung AR E
(Chief Executive Officer & (TR R
Deputy Chairman) FEE) 4 NATEER NATER  NATES 1 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco BBREE 4 N/A TNig N/A N N/A RN 1 1
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky AEELT 4 NATER  NATER  NATES 1 1
Ms. MON Tiffany LERLT 4 N/A TNE A N/A T N/A TE 1 1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise BRziat
(Chairman) (k) 4 2 1 1 1 1

Independent Non-Executive BV 378

Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay BRBESE 4 2 1 1 1 1
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones FRERE 4 2 1 1 1 1
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard  EE$E3£45E 40 2 2 1 1 1 0
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying® BRETT0 N/A R N/A TNEA N/A TNER N/A R A N/A TEf N/A R
Notes: Wizt -
(1) Resigned on 29th December 2017. (1) REZFE—tF+ A=+ HEET -

2) Appointed on 29th December 2017. 2) REZFE—tF A=+t NAZE -



DIRECTORS” REPORT
EEHE

The Board submits their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December 2017.

Principal Activities and Geographical

Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out below:
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EEgENREEEREREE_T—tF+
=t BUFEZEEZGEMBEERE -

REEEKERMIHE D 25

ARA)z FBEBRIERR - AHBAR TR
FREREEERIERERER - MBARZE
BEN R A MR E28 -

AFEZREBMWRED 2 NEEEBERAINER
AR BTSRRI RS

LEMBEHRE
TEBRARBEBETFN EE  AERERE
BE :

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—tF —ZT—RF T—HFf —ZT-OF T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT T T FAT
Revenue Wz 364,401 359,035 401,669 455,403 466,706
Profit for the year FEERN 19,283 14,622 11,688 18,917 21,216
Total assets WEE 692,770 637,266 642,719 634,110 621,212
Total liabilities waEfE (130,353) (132,796) (136,335) (141,037) (145,508)
Total equity Bl 562,417 504,470 506,384 493,073 475,704
Analysis of the Group’s Performance REBZEBRRDN
An analysis of the Group's performance is set forth in the ARNEBZEEXBONANFEZTFAEZTH
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report. WMER o
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEWmEGE)

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers respectively, classified
by individual entity, are as follows:

TEREFRHER
AEENAREY EBHEFRES - AERIER
DRZEBLEEAOLLINT

%
Purchases g
—the largest supplier — A ER 34.7%
— five largest suppliers combined — AR ER 69.9%
Sales THE
- the largest customer —HRAEFP 23.4%
— five largest customers combined —RAREF 66.3%

None of the directors, their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 65 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

Principal Properties
Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share issued in the year

No new shares were issued during the year. Details of shares
issued as at 31st December 2017 are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31st December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the laws of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$23,517,000. In addition, the Company’s
contributed surplus, amounting to HK$62,548,000 as at 31st
December 2017, is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of the contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the
net realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its share capital and share premium
account. The Company's share premium account with a balance of
HK$15,885,000 as at 31st December 2017 is distributable in the
form of fully-paid bonus shares.

B RELETBEAL(ERR EMHRRDHE
R (BB ERPIAG A AR 5% A LA
S BER)WEN Lt TR EEHKELTEA
s -

RER D E
AEENAEEY $EHNESH L HARBR
WO

EFETERRERYBE

FEYE
BEERERRZ EEMEZFBHNERATBR
FHIEE16 -

RERFITHRAE

RERILBEEITHRA - BAARBR T —LF
T A=+ BZERETRARN RS M REM
20 -

A5 IR#E
RIE—+FE+-A=+—"08 ARARBEEHRE
EDIETE 2 ATt 5 R R A8 23,517,0007T °
AN ARBR—ZE—tF+_A=Z+—HZEH
B#h BB 162,548,0007T * JHAJ DR o AR
W) AN 2 B A (S ERR A B R ) (BEE
BffaE (i EEEZ 2R FEEREAE -
HEE AR )RER 42F - BIARRR] ATk
SORMIRE  HEBHBBREL DK o KARRR
T+ F+ - A=+ HZBRDREIRGSEE
15,885,000 T Al AR IR FR 2 AL A DR ©



Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$1,128,000.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the

Company'’s Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, more than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares was held by the public as at 20th March
2018, being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, in accordance with Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Analysis of Bank Loans and Other

Borrowings
The Group's bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st December

B
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REFARERE Z ZAZ1BRET,128,0008 7T ©

BrBER
AR Z ARMARLEEBE R T - ME%
AP R A L BB PR ERRIRE %

B 2B

STREERATE -

BE - HEREEAATZ EHE

%

AR AN AN E N B EAE AR » NAF] K
HEMMBRARBEEAFEANBE - BOHE
ERIARBZ D -

DNRPFRE
RBARBEAREEAESNER SR ASERMN
HMOBEZ-N\F=A-+AH  BIRFHRET
AISBERAITEY  ARRDHITROHBEEAD
TFRAB - A LTHRRIES.081k 2R

Z_THAR

E o

RITERREMEEDH

—tEET A=+ —HZRTERRK

AEBR=Z
N

2017 are repayable over the following period: HiEEBER T EAREE -
Trust
receipt loans Bank loan Total
EEBIEE R IRITER b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
On demand or not exceeding one year ENEAEE S —FER(EE 37,621 - 37,621
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEWmEGE)

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. MON Chung Hung
(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman)
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard (resigned on 29th December 2017)
Ms. CHUNG Kit Ying (appointed on 29th December 2017)

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Mr. Lau Chun
Kay will retire in accordance with clause 111 of the Company’s Bye-
laws at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company
and in accordance with bye-law 114 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Ms. Chung Kit Ying, who has been appointed by the Board on 29th
December 2017, shall hold office until the Annual General Meeting.
All of them being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent non-
executive director is not more than three years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management
The biographical details of the directors and senior management of
the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 67, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director, Authorised Representative and a member of the
compliance committee of the Board. Mr. Mon has over 40 years of
experience in the electric cable and wire industry. He is responsible
for the Group's overall strategic planning and policy making. Mr.
Mon is a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also the husband of Ms. Koo Di
An, Louise and the father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon
Tiffany.

5
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 58, is an Executive Director,
Authorised Representative and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1986. Mr. Siu has
over 30 years of experience in the electric cable and wire industry.
Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director of the Group and is responsible
for sales of the Group's products and product development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 43, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Board. She graduated
from the Central Queensland University in Australia with a Bachelor
of Communications degree. She joined the Group in 2004. As the
Marketing Executive, she participates in developing marketing
strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and Ms.
Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister of Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 37, is an Executive Director and a member
of the compliance committee of the Board. She holds a bachelor’s
double major degree in economics and management from the
University of Sydney, Australia, Diploma in Company Direction from
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and “RSSGB" certification from
Six Sigma Institute. She joined the Group in 2002. As the Marketing
Communications Manager, she coordinates marketing strategies
and is also responsible for the information system of the Company.
She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and Ms. Koo Di An,
Louise, and the younger sister of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 66, is the Chairman, a Non-Executive
Director, the chairman of the compliance committee and a member
of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of the
Board. Ms. Koo is a director of Spector Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. She is also the wife of Mr.
Mon Chung Hung and the mother of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms.
Mon Tiffany.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEWmEGE)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, M.A., aged 69, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees and a member of the compliance
committee of the Board. He joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Lau is
a registered professional engineer and holds a master’s degree
in business administration and a bachelor’'s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, and a master
degree in history and a master degree of Arts Course in Philosophy
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a Life
President of the Hong Kong Electrical Contractors Association, and
a past President and current Secretary General of The Federation
of Asian and Pacific Electrical Contractors Associations. He is also
the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical
and Mechanical Contractors. He has over 47 years of experience in
management and engineering.

Mr. Lee Chung Nai, Jones, aged 69, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Board. Mr. Lee has
over 36 years of experience in international trade in toys, among
which Mr. Lee had also operated a toys factory with 2,000 workers
in China for 10 years. Mr. Lee had also operated a subsidiary
company in Hong Kong for a listed company in Australia. Mr. Lee
has his own toy company.

Ms. Chung Kit Ying, aged 42, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and compliance committee of the Board. She joined the Group
in December 2017. Ms. Chung obtained a degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration and a degree of Master of Science in
Finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1997 and
2007, respectively. Ms. Chung has worked in an international firm
of certified public accountants and the finance department of a
listed group, and has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and auditing. Ms. Chung is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Kevin Kwok Wah LEUNG, aged 55, LLB, MBA, MSC,
MFIN, FCPA, FCCA, FHKSI, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. LEUNG is responsible for financial and accounting
management, corporate governance and administration of the
Company. He joined the Group in 2013. Mr. Leung's experience
includes public listings in Hong Kong SAR, United States and
Singapore, financial due diligence and internal and external audit
work. Before joining the Group, he was a Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of a main-board listed company in Hong Kong
and was a senior audit manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree (Honor) of Law from Manchester
Metropolitan University, a Master degree of Business
Administration from Western Ontario University, a Master of
Science degree in Corporate Governance and Directorship
from Hong Kong Baptist University, a master degree of Finance
from Curtin University of Technology, an Advanced Diploma in
Specialist Taxation from the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and is a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Mr. Chan Chun Yu, aged 46, is the Group’'s Assistant Manufacturing
Manager and is responsible for sales and marketing activities. He
joined the Group in 1997, holds a Bachelor degree and Master
degree in Mechanical Engineering and has over 21 years of
experience in the electric cable and wire industry.

Mr. Au Sui Cheung, aged 39, FCCA, HKICPA, is the Finance
Manager and Company Secretary of the Company and is
responsible for finance functions and the Company Secretary work.
He joined the Group in 2013, holds a Bachelor degree in Business
and Business Administration — Accounting and has over 16 years of
experience in accounting and auditing.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEWmEGE)

Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements and Contracts
that are Significant in Relation to the

Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which its holding company or
the Company's subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director
of the Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in

Equity or Debt Securities

At 31st December 2017, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO") as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company) were as
follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
(“Shares”)

Number of shares

EEREXEEXBEEARERZ
X5 RERENZERER

PR A B R E B A R ER ] LA F R F A
ERREFE  AEAKREXBEEANERLE T
BEARRIZERRESZ B ERIEEREE
AEZZERR S ~ T REK -

EBRTETHABRRARES
HHEER

RIE—+FE+-A=+—8 BREEHFLHEE
BI3S2E Z MEMFE 2 B LMATES:  ARAIE
ERTFETBAEBEARNRSERNELIE(EER
BHREEEHIEXVER) 25 - BN RES
FREEA D SIAARIEEERN 2SR
™

RRFFRO10BT 2EHBR( KRG )

Total interests
as % of the

RIFEE relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share

Name interests interests interests interests interests capital

RN

EBITRAE

A B ARz RixfER EERER HithiE s HmRER ZEDL

MON Chung Hung - 5,258,000 139,900,000 - 145,158,000 72.96%
AR (note 1/4/3#1) (note 2 ffi72)

KOO Di An, Louise 5,258,000 139,900,000 - - 145,158,000 72.96%

=hik (note 3 ff17#3)
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - - 138,000 0.07%

el




Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Equity or Debt Securities (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
(“Shares”) (Continued)

note 1: Mr. Mon Chung Hung is the husband of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, Mr.
Mon Chung Hung is thus deemed to be interested in 5,258,000
shares by virtue of his wife's interest therein.

note 2: The 139,900,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector Holdings
Limited, the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as
t0 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1 % by
Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

note 3: Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung. Ms.
Koo is thus deemed to be interested in 139,900,000 Shares by
virtue of her husband'’s interest therein.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st
December 2017, no short positions were recorded in the Register
of Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or
its holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or its specified undertakings or other associated
corporation.
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EERITETHRAERRADER
w2 2 s (4R)

?;:%ﬁ’éﬂ’io.m%ii%‘ﬁﬁﬁ(rﬁiﬁj)

Hiat1 : mIRIESEEBBEE LT X2 LK FH RIS LA
EZFHRL R BEB 5,258, 0008817 -

MiiF2 : il 139,900,0008% 7 # Spector Holdings Limited &
BHEE BN A199.9% 5 H7THR A A 7 IR I SE
HH - BT H0.1%BBEE LK LR °

Wiat3 : BT Z L Bm RIS ZE T BRI
ARZER (A7 1517 B 139,900,000
R o

tiiFrERaB AR R_FT—tF+=A
=t+—RB  REFHFRPEHRI352E 2R TEMF
BECERRERITHAR 2B loR A Bao
MR R FLER °

REREMERE - AAF - LM EAR MEZERA
AIBERT AL - BEARREZTREETH
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
BEWmEGE)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the
Share Capital of the Company

Other than the interests of the directors and chief executives of
the Company as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2017, the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO records interests (as defined in the SFO) in the Company of
the following persons.

Number of Shares

BB E

FERRRAQDARARN 2=

B ENFEZ AR EENETBITRAS 2%
G R-ZTE—+E+-A=1+—08 " BEELK
BB IEPIZE3361& 2 M EMTE 2 B M ATAC 8k -
IUTACHEERARRzERS(FERBERPEK
Bl) o

Total interests
as % of the

relevant
Personal Family Corporate Other Total issued share
Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
HRERIGIEE
ERITRA
e B AR Edi 5 EERER HitbiE s R ZEA
Spector Holdings Limited 139,900,000 - - - 139,900,000 70.32%
(note 1)
(Hrit1)
Fang Zhun Chun 7F1&/% 9,958,000 - - - 9,958,000 5.00%

note 1: The share capital of the Spector Holdings Limited is owned as to
99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by
Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2017, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of substantial
shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware, there
were no person who, as at 31st December 2017, directly or
indirectly held or was beneficially interested in shares representing
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

Bz 1 - Spector Holdings Limited Z f% K A 54199.9% i #
IRIESE LG - 87 TR0 1% ABE L X 1 HE °

tAmEREHRER R _F—tF+ A
=+—B  REFEFRPEGDIB36MH R EMF
BEZFERRZBRINERSORBRELMA - WA
BRCEE ©

R EXFmEN  REEZMM R-_T—LF
T-A=1+—8B ITEEFATEERREEFERL
EHBEAARRIHENE QR EITRAS%IA
b2 BefntEes o

BEEEH
AR PO AT SL IR T A SR A AR R AT ]
EERUEM 2 T RTRAL -



Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
None of the Directors has an interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

Business Review
Business review of the Group is set forth in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 6 to 8 of this report.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors of
the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or an
associated company (if made by the Company).

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BN S

To the Shareholders of Perennial International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perennial International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 65 to 151, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st
December 2017;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

HEHEEMERQFTRR
(RBFREEMRIZHBRAT)

2R

EFHEETHAR
BHEEARABUATEEEAR ) MEAKBEA
AI(A TSR] S5 ) IIENFESEI151BENGR
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Eo

BAHNER

BARR  ZEFAPBHRRERETBSMA
SRMACBEMBRELENEEMP Hi R
T BEEER_FT—tF+_A=1+—RANEGREH
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
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BB RS ()

FRETEE

AR E FHRERERMNEXAL - RASHAH
RAPBRRNBARSERNEIR - FLEHE
ERFIFFTERGEMHHRE L AR REETR
B MM SHELSRREHREBNESR -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

BAER T ER AR ET SR T

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET NAEEERENSE

Valuation for land and buildings and investment
properties

THRETFREREMENGE

Refer to notes 2.6, 2.7, 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2R MEHRAMEE2.6 - 2.7 - 1516 °

We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer by verifying their qualifications, discussing
the scope of their work and reviewing the terms of their
engagement.

HPIEHE T AEMOBER S EXENRFEL - 8%
FEHER BHENRAMETHIESREREHNEZREK

=
N

We carried out procedures to test whether property-
specific standing data supplied to the valuer by
management reflected the underlying property records
held by the Group.
HIFIETTTZEREF - WA ERERE T HEMNYES
EBIR RS R B P AE R E BV RCER ©
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
B ZEERE ()

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

FRETEEGE)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET NAEERERENSE

The Group owns land and buildings in Hong Kong and
the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") for office
premises and manufacturing plants respectively, and
owns investment properties in Hong Kong for investment
purpose (together, the “Properties”). These are classified
as property, plant and equipment and investment
properties according to their use and their carrying
values are HK$319 million and HK$52 million as at 31st
December 2017 respectively. For the year ended 31st
December 2017, revaluation deficit of HK$3 million relating
to land and buildings classified as property, plant and
equipment and revaluation gain of HK$5 million relating to
the investment properties are recorded in the consolidated
income statement, revaluation surplus of HK$28 million
relating to land and buildings classified as property, plant
and equipment is recorded in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

KREBEZERPEARLNMB([HRER ) BES L REF
DRIRERAEREEMREIANETBIEGIREMEER
ER®(HEZEDE]D  UREERRSBAEDE &

BEARIEYE NZE—+FE+-_A=+—08 @
BEDRAE319EETROS2ERAT - HE—ZT—+tF+ 8
=T—HIFE  BEIBEEME  HEMEER LM RE
FEHBH3IEEETLREBOEAREMENE[H RS
BEBIIRGREERRIE  MBEBSEAYE  BEKR
B T R T EERR0.28EH T ING S 2R
,EEO

The valuations of these Properties are inherently subjective
due to, among other factors, the individual nature of each
property and its location.

BN (KR ERE) S B ENERIME REFEMmE - %
MENLERRFEETHM -

4

The valuations of these Properties were carried out by an
independent professional qualified valuer.

ZEYENGETIRBLE XS ERGEMETT

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions
and inputs used by the valuer by performing market
research on comparable transactions available for
properties located in Hong Kong and the average cost of
construction and useful life for properties located in the
PRC. Where the assumptions applied by the valuer were
outside our expected range or otherwise unusual, we
discussed the matters with the valuer and management
and obtained additional evidence to support the
explanations received.

HNBBYE  BRAATSATLRETEERHESE 7
AEEMAANTIERRENLSENSIEN - HRPERYE -
BAIBL TR N AE B ERETHIHM T - FHEEE
RIFTARM E 2MRMSBNE IR - WG EL A RERE
HEPIERNBELHREMREIER - RIS EEERD R
EEENWAREELER T EHBRERBEIFBIESX

# o

We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuations
were supportable in light of the available evidence.

ERFENER - ZARSEEMBNRRBAERE -




Key Audit Matters (Continued)
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FRETEEGE)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET NAEERERENSE

Properties in Hong Kong were valued using the direct
comparison approach, with reference to the sales prices
per square foot of comparable properties and adjusted
for key differences in key attributes such as location and
size. Factory buildings in the PRC were valued using the
depreciated replacement cost approach, with reference to
the cost of construction per square metre in the relevant
locations and apply assumptions for estimated depreciation
over the useful life, to arrive at the final valuation.

R BEBNZEYFEABELBORETHE - ER2EA
BYESTHARNEBIMTEHMENEZRE(FIG
B B SR EAE AN VR M E R E R - LR BIA T
BEFUAFESERANEETHE - EFL2EREMREF
BFHRRBREN AR T A AF G E - LAGH
RERAE -

The significance of the estimates and judgments involved
warrants specific audit focus in this area.
BENMEEBRER TP KA RAE+5
BENEZIEETRULEE -

B2 HILFEA

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Hi5 8
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
B ZEERE ()

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
B ZEERE ()

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Yuk Ting Mabel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
meEER

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET Tt
Revenue WS 5 364,401 359,035
Cost of sales SHER A (282,099) (278,766)
Gross profit EF 82,302 80,269
Other income HAtb iz 6 8,163 5,115
Distribution expenses DEEF S (9,150) (8,887)
Administrative expenses THRAXZ (52,213) (54,159)
Other operating expenses, net Hih &> i E5E (2,641) (2,465)
Operating profit Fegebenv 7 26,461 19,873
Finance costs WEER 8 (1,000) (1,138)
Profit before taxation R BTz A 25,461 18,735
Income tax 18 9(a) (6,178) (4,113)
Profit for the year attributable to /NG
shareholders of the Company NG FE 5 | 19,283 14,622
Basic and diluted earnings ERERNEEE
per share (cents) ZF) (L) 1 9.7 7.3

The notes on pages 73 to 151 are an integral part of these 732151 BN AL A IS RE MG o
consolidated financial statements.



66 Perennial International Limited 1E&fSE BB R A 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZERER

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Profit for the year REEH A 19,283 14,622
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hip2mlzs,(185%) :
ltems that will not be reclassified HEESresioBEEamNmIEE
subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluation surplus on land and buildings iiﬁ&@%ﬂ—ZEﬁ%ﬁ% 27,992 405
ltems that may be reclassified to Egngeeslo s ERIER
profit or loss
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to (), AELEFEE 2 EETIE
revaluation reserve (4,706) 7
Exchange difference arising from WEBA R IREKR iRz
translation of financial statements fERER
of subsidiaries 19,358 (12,968)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEREEMEERE(BK)
for the year, net of tax MERFIE 42,644 (12,556)
Total comprehensive income for the year 7N &) iR fE(L
attributable to shareholders AEFBEEEWES
of the Company 61,927 2,066

The notes on pages 73 to 151 are an integral part of these F73E 151 BHHI AL A B TS RE AL L4 o
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PRI R

As at 31st December 2017
K=F—tF+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEmENEE
Land use rights T R 14 28,470 28,289
Property, plant and equipment ME - B K& 15 345,655 314,584
Investment properties B 16 52,150 46,990
Non-current deposits ERBNE] 2 1,105 2,801
Deferred tax assets FETHTAE 9(b) 4,742 6,126
432,122 398,790
Current assets MENEE
Inventories T8 17 101,330 80,654
Trade and bill receivables EUWE 5 R R B 18 80,682 83,738
Other receivables, deposits and HEEUERR - 5l &
prepayments RIBFFRIE 7,251 5,714
Taxation recoverable ERER | 2,764 67
Short-term fixed deposit 5 HE HATE Ak 19 - 1,112
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIBESEEY 19 68,621 67,191
260,648 238,476
Total assets BEE 692,770 637,266
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to shareholders PN &Y oy B
of the Company
Share capital R 20 19,896 19,896
Other reserves EAb 21 244,553 201,909
Retained earnings {REE &7 21 297,968 282,665
Total equity BRES 562,417 504,470
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities e UN=Ei=

Deferred tax liabilities ELEFHIBEAGE 9(b) 39,092 34,316
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
REPBMRREKE)

As at 31st December 2017
K=F—tF+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —ERF
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FAT

Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and bill payables ERESREREE 22 22,817 23,191
Other payables and accruals Hib et IE R EETF X 22 29,325 28,016
Taxation payable FERTERIR 1,498 6,106
Bank loan RITER 23 - 11,875
Trust receipt loans EEWIEER 23 37,621 29,292
91,261 98,480
Total liabilities FEN=E 130,353 132,796
Total equity and liabilities REZRBEE 692,770 637,266

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 151 were  Z£65E £ £ 151 B2 GAMBRER S — \FE=
approved by the Board of Directors on 20th March 2018 and were B -+ HA&EEE@H ETKRKREE o
signed on its behalf

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
=R e
Director Director

EE EE

The notes on pages 73 to 151 are an integral part of these $73& 151 BM AL MIEHRENEEIGD o
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

Other
Share reserves Retained Total
capital (note 21) earnings equity
Hiti i

A& (Het21) REBF BrEm
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FTExT Tz TR

As at 1st January 2017 R=—E—+F—H—H 19,896 201,909 282,665 504,470
Comprehensive income FEWE
Profit for the year INEE i | - - 19,283 19,283

Other comprehensive income/(loss) H bz mzE(B%)
Revaluation surplus on land and T MIEF 2 BE AR

buildings - 27,992 - 27,992
Deferred tax charged to HBpEEFEE ELERIE
revaluation reserve - (4,706) - (4,706)

Exchange difference arising from B A TBEHRER 2
translation of financial statements K /[EXRZE=E

of subsidiaries - 19,358 - 19,358
Total comprehensive income for REFHEEM R
the year - 42,644 19,283 61,927
Dividend paid (note 10) SRR E(FsE10) - - (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2017 R_ZT—+F
+=—HA=+—H 19,896 244,553 297,968 562,417
Representing: HER
2017 final dividend proposed T FRIREL
REAIR S -
Others HAith 297,968
Retained earnings as at RZE—+tF
31st December 2017 +=—A=+—H
ZREBEF 297,968
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
mERREEHR(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

Other
Share reserves Retained Total
capital (note 21) earnings equity
HAbfEE
[N (Hiaz21) REB & fatE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TATT TAT

As at 1st January 2016 R-ZE—XRF—H—H 19,896 214,465 272,023 506,384
Comprehensive income FEWE
Profit for the year AN [E i A = = 14,622 14,622

Other comprehensive income/(loss) H bz mzE(B%)
Revaluation surplus on land and T RIEFZ EGAHR

buildings - 405 - 405
Deferred tax credited to T AE G 2 R IE
revaluation reserve - 7 - 7

Exchange difference arising from B A TBERER 2
translation of financial statements i /[ERZ=E
of subsidiaries — (12,968) = (12,968)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income AREE#EL2mE (38%K),/

for the year Uz = (12,556) 14,622 2,066
Dividend paid (note 10) AR S (F1EE10) - - (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2016 RZE—~

+=-—A= 19,896 201,909 282,665 504,470
Representing: HER :
2016 final dividend proposed T RFRIREZ
AN S 3,980
Others Hih 278,685
Retained earnings as at RZE—RF
31st December 2016 +=—A=+—H
ZIRAEF 282,665

The notes on pages 73 to 151 are an integral part of these  E73F151EMWiiE AL S MK RENEE LG o
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERIRER

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
et FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities EEEHNRERE
Net cash generated from operations CEELNFEIES 24(a) 24,103 50,628
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded, net (Zf+), iREZE B MEHFEE (5,432) 592
Overseas tax paid, net SAEINFITS T SRR (6,060) (2,364)
Bank loans interest paid TRITERFE (1,000) (1,138)
Net cash generated from operating EEETHEANFEES
activities 11,611 47,718
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHNRERE
Purchase of property, BEMZE - WE&E&HE
plant and equipment (4,349) (28,575)
Purchase of land use rights U 'S T Hb{F M - (8,513)
Increase in deposits paid g A -
for additions of property, BENEE TS
plant and equipment (246) (575)
Interest received BN FI B 63 35
Decrease/(Increase) in short-term S/ (3800) %8 HAE 2R
fixed deposit T 1,112 (1,112)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYE  BER
plant and equipment SAEFTIS R 24(b) 54 183
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFTANERS (3,366) (38,557)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Net repayment of bank loan SFEERITER 24(c) (11,875) (6,042)
Net addition of trust receipt loans FEETE SRR E R 24(c) 8,329 1,972
Dividend paid to the Company’s BENEIESER]
shareholders % 2 (3,980) (3,980)
Net cash used in financing activities mE R TRAFIRS (7,526) (8,050)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
reRenexR(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
Hiat FER FAT
Net increase in cash and ReRASEEYZFEM
cash equivalents 719 1,111
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January W—A—BZHEE& &
BEEEY 67,191 66,560
Exchange difference on cash and cash ReERRESEEW
equivalents ERER 711 (480)
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—HBzZzHEK
at 31st December REEEY 19 68,621 67,191

The notes on pages 73 to 151 are an integral part of these Z73F 151 B K T AL A BTEHE AR LA o

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

General Information

Perennial International Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of electric cable and wire
products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") unless otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings and
investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

—REH
EPEEERAA (AR ) B2 E R
AR ARFREFAT (G ARE)E
SR FRERERBRIERES -

ARRIRBREFMKA—MEAER AR -
HiF =R it A Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

BrAINERRIN  EERAMBERRIAET

E]I
TESTBREE

REMSHEAVMBHREMRABZEIESS
BERBRTX > FRERBI - I FRRE
FIERNFABEFENERER -

21 wEEE
AEBEAMBHEIRBESY
RS LR R BB NG EL602ESR
SKIRE o BR B W RIBE LA A S
SRR R R ERIEE YR
B TR A ERIEE o

RENABAVBRELEANES
MBEBRFEERAE THERSE
B-ENFEEEECRALNEE
SR BREPITEEAE - PR
=ERHE K EE RS
8 R EIR A M RREEANRR
EE RS - £ EARE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FESHHKFEHE(E)
Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
(a) New standards and amendments to (a) AEBEREANNFETHEE
standards adopted by the Group Y ZER
The following new standards and AEBRE-ZE—+F—HA
amendments to standards have been adopted — B2 BFARNTREE
by the Group for the first time for the financial BIRERAN SO E R A1 E A&
year beginning on or after 1st January 2017: PREZER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
AT A
ZEBEEN
SrHHBEXN
HKAS 7 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative 1st January 2017
BALTENFTRUEETAR) HEERE —T—t+F—HA—H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 1st January 2017
EBGFTERE1250(EF]A)  Unrealised Losses —FT—+tF—A—H
MAEREEERELEHIEEE
HKFRS 12 (Amendment) Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities 1st January 2017
BN BIRELERF125% FHEANEMEENER —T—t+F—H—H
(3T A)
The adoption of these new standards and AN E L ET M E (B ik B 2
amendments to standards did not have BIJ 34 7K B fE = (E ) 3 1 HA RE
any impact on the current period or any MIEHRS R KRBT 25
prior period and is not likely to affect future 4% 10

periods.



2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2.

Policies (Continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2017 R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

TESHBRBE(A)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
New standards and amendments to (b) i RN FTE R RASET &
standards and interpretations not yet R
adopted

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective
for annual periods beginning after 1st January
2017 and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.

ZIRFR] R R EREETA
URZREBR-_ZT—tF—A
—RzRFARFRBEE
M ERREZERA T
WREF I AR

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Annual Improvements Project

FREBCEIRE
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

B et ERIE 285 (BRI A)

HKAS 40 (Amendment)

BB EFHERIE405 (BRTA)

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

R LA ACCHIRNY

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

BB REAERZE 258
CEFIEY),

HKFRS 4 (Amendment)

BB HREERE 455
CEREY),

HKFRS 9

BB R ELERFE IR

RT3 HH#m®
ZEBIRE
R EESS
Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle 1st January 2018
—T-NFEE_T-RFRPNFENRE T N\F-A—H
Investments in Associates and Joint 1st January 2018
Ventures —E-\F—HA—H
REtE R E &R ARIRE
Transfers of Investment Property 1st January 2018
EEREMHE —E-N\F—-HA—H
First Time Adoption of HKFRS 1st January 2018
BRI E BT RS £R —T-N\¥—HA—H
Classification and Measurement of 1st January 2018
Share-based Payment Transactions —T—-\F—H—H

AR RERO N R ZH D REAE
Insurance Contracts

RERE K

Financial Instruments
ST HE

1st January 2018

or when the entity
first applies HKFRS 9
- )\F—H—H
DN =N
BB EwEZER
b

1st January 2018
- \F—H—H

73
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

TESHBRBE(A)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2.
Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 EEEE(E)
(b) New standards and amendments to (b) MREMNWFEAREBITR
standards and interpretations not yet fRfE (4E)

adopted (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTE5 AR
Z KRB
RS

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BB HRELERFE 105 &
BAEEETERIFE 285
CHEN,

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

HEEHERESEE NG ZENEE
HESEE

To be determined
/= e

~FE

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1st January 2018
BB E SR 1555 REEPE R —ZE-N\F—-HA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1st January 2019
BB REERNF 1657 HE —E-NF—A—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract 1st January 2021
BB EwEAER B 1758 RERE 4 2 —4%—H—H
HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and 1st January 2018
H5 (BRI RERE Advance Consideration —2—-N\F—H—H

ZEE) 3225 SN2 5 TR B
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1st January 2019
B (RBRMBRERE FRTS Bt B 32 1) N REE 1 —FT-hF—A—H

ZEE)—F23%

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
Amendments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While
preliminary assessment has been completed
for HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16, the
actual impacts upon the initial adoption of
the standards may differ as the assessment
completed to date is based on information
currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the
standards are initially applied.

AEBELHEZFBIT AR
YR IE PR HA I TR B X B0 52
& o 2 S AREEE BRI #E
IR M BHRRIENTED
el ERIMET @ - B
FENE—FFBR T XA
im o BEBBUBREER
5 - BBMHFMEERIE
155% R BB R 7% S 2 RIS
165 AT RHEE 2K - B
BREMZEEANERE
UM TR - RERE
S EMAFHEER A EER
RrAl B ERHMEL - E—
FPRENERBRERZS
2RI 2 AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 15: “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for
the recognition of revenue. This will replace
HKAS 18 which covers revenue arising
from the sale of goods and the rendering
of services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts.

The new standard is based on the principle
that revenue is recognised when control of a
good or service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption. The new standard
is effective for first interim periods within
annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1st January 2018. The Group will adopt the
new standard from 1st January 2018.

The Group performed a preliminary
assessment of HKFRS 15, which is subject to
changes arising from a more detailed ongoing
analysis. The impact to the Group is expected
to include more comprehensive disclosure as
requested by the new standard. In addition,
HKFRS 15 requires separate presentation
on the balance sheet of the right to recover
the goods from the customer and the refund
obligation.

The Group does not expect the adoption
to have a material impact to the Group's
Financial Information, other than presenting
additional disclosures.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1st January 2018. At
this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt
the standard before its effective date.

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

2. FEETHEBEGRE)
21 REEE(E)

(b)

1ef R BR A B 7 28 Bl ]2 A8 5T I
fRiE ()

BEBUBHREERE15% -
KEEFEHZHUA

TR HMEA
FERRAORT R - EAS I E
BEETERE 185 ORE W
S8 mMiE RS E LAWK
A)MEBAGTERIFE 1157
(REZEAR) -

EAMRUBKWABES
MR HREEER

PR -

I 2 RV A B 2 B AR A =K
RIEBUE B TT R - stk
AR T \F—A—Bx%
ZERBHFERE RN
BER R AR - NEE
BR-E—\F—F—Hit
BRAQIE TRRTAER o

REBYEBY G mEER
FISSEITI RS - BEX
FHBBEONMAELE

T  HAKENTEERY
AR ER EBRAAE 2
EE - Lo - BRPBR
SREAFISHAENEER
BEXRBY2IAEFPKEE
n HORER SRR E (E ©

765 [ TR R BR 4 1Lk 2 RV B Bt
MEEING T EHARE
MIEEREREATE -

FREMBRELF15HR
—E-N\F-H—-BHxkzi
A 46 B B DR 4R T2 58 ) AR 2K
RULPEE - REEESNE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 16: “Leases”

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
results in almost all leases being recognized
on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognized.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating leases.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments as
lessee of HK$960,000. However, the Group
has not yet determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the recognition of
an asset and a liability for future payments
and how this will affect the Group's profit and
classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low-value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16.

The standard is mandatory for first interim
periods within annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

2.

FTEETBERBEGR)
RBIE%E ()

2.1

(b)

1ef R BR A B 7 28 Bl ]2 A8 5T I
fRiE ()

BEBUBHREERFE16% -
ik
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ERERAER - RIBHE
A  EE(HEEENRER
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ERARK - SR EEmng
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IRl e B B R E F K
EHEMSTEE - #IEE
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S B DR A A 8 TR B AR
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& B & AR T XA E RS 0 {a]
P AR EEML AR RN
MEE ARG AFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9: “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses
the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge
accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets. The Group has decided not
to adopt HKFRS 9 until it becomes mandatory
on Tst January 2018.

The Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets and liabilities.

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses (ECL) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain
financial guarantee contracts.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes
in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group's
disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

2. FESHBERBE(E)
21 HmEEE(E)

(b)

1ef R BR A B 7 28 Bl ]2 A8 5T I
fRiE ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated,
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred assets. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investments. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3

24

25

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rate
are generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Perennial International Limited 1E&fSE BB R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the statement
of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statement of profit or loss
on a net basis within other income or other
expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial
position;

(ii) income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated
at an average exchange rate for the
year; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment property,
principally comprising leasehold land and buildings.
Land held under operating leases is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
independent valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as part of a valuation gain or loss in “other operating
expenses, net”.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Perennial International Limited 1E&fSE BB R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Land and Buildings

Land mainly represents the lands in Hong
Kong under finance lease. Buildings comprise
factories and offices. Land and buildings
are shown at fair value, based on annual
valuations by an external independent valuer,
less subsequent depreciation and impairment.
The valuations of Hong Kong land and
buildings and Mainland China factories are on
an open market value basis or depreciated
replacement costs basis. Any accumulated
depreciation and impairment at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of land under finance lease and
buildings are credited to land and building
revaluation reserve in equity, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement,
in which case the increase is credited to
the consolidated income statement to the
extent of the decrease previously charged.
Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same asset are charged against land and
building revaluation reserve directly in equity;
all other decreases are expensed in the
consolidated income statement.

Other property, plant and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment,
comprising leasehold improvements, plant
and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office
equipment, motor vehicles and pleasure boats
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items

Construction in progress is stated at cost
which comprises construction costs,
purchase costs and other related expenses
incurred in connection with the construction
of buildings, plant and machinery for own use,
less provision for impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Depreciation

Depreciation on lands under finance lease
and buildings is calculated to write off their
valuation less accumulated impairment losses
on a straight-line basis over the unexpired
period of the leases or their estimated useful
lives, whichever is shorter. The principal
annual rates used range from 1.5% t0 2.2%.

Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less
accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives on a reducing balance
basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

15% - 20%
15% - 20%
15% —20%
15% - 20%
15% - 20%
10%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Motor vehicles

Pleasure boats

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property,
plant and equipment.

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.
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Perennial International Limited 1E&fSE BB R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Others (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’'s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated income statement and are
recognised within ‘other operating expense,
net’. Where revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in land and building
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained
earnings.

2.7 Assets under finance leases/operating
leases

(i)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
not transferred to the group as lessee are
classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where
the group is a lessor is recognized in income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The respective leased assets are included in
the statement of financial position based on
their nature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Assets under finance leases/operating

leases (Continued)

(i) Finance leases
Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group as lessee has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s inception at
the fair value at the leased property or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in current and non-current payables.
Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance costs. The finance cost is
charged to consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases is depreciated over the
asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term even if
there is no reasonable certainty that the group
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease
term.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost mainly represents consideration paid for
the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period of 45-65 years
from the date the respective right was granted.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the land use
rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised

2.11

in the consolidated income statement.

Non-

financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following category: loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and bill receivables’, ‘other receivables
and deposits’, ‘short-term fixed deposit’
and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(notes 2.13 and 2.14).

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date —
the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Policies (Continued)

2.12

2.13

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual
items on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived at
as follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

(if) Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

(iii) Finished goods purchased for resale —
invoiced price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated income statement in the financial period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability and an expense when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus
plan are expected to be settled within twelve
months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates several defined
contribution schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For Hong Kong employees, the Group
contributes to Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") scheme in accordance with Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions to the MPF scheme
by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ remuneration
received. The Group’s contributions to MPF
scheme are expensed as incurred. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii)  Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

For employees in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme managed by the local
municipal government in Mainland China.
The Group's contributions to the retirement
scheme are expensed as incurred while the
local municipal government in Mainland China
undertakes to assume that the retirement
benefit obligations of the qualified employees
in Mainland China.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intend either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

2. FESHHEBEE)

219 EfRIELR A (E)

(b)

IEEBL IR
BEFFSRANAABERE
E B R Ay B 5L R A B E A
BEEREVBHRERNERR
BEMELANERERELS
BB o A - RIEPTISTR
REERZ(TEELEA
BB BERB BT HE
R MEXZHIZEET
Bk E RV EE - BT E
R o IRIEDARBERS
HIERAE R EER
o - SRR ZREFFFH
BEBERSELEMEHEE
RERERSSERZHE
(BSEP) MEETE -

BRARAREFENREY
ENELEH AR BT REZ
YMEKBEBHETEWEM

BEE -

ELEFSTHE EEAERNKIE
RE SR ANAZEE R
=B R EER T ARER -

il 2N A BE 422 i) 43¢ [0 By =2
BORELZEERRAE
AERNA A HRER - AR
SRBIN KRB IE REE SR
BEZ FNEREERRE
EFRRREREE °

i 55 17 7 AT ROK 38 B BT AY
BB AEERAE
i - RAEEERIAGRE
Rl — B ERRE - AR
ELERBEERBERE -
s = B8 B AIROE R B BT K
HEN BB BRFEEES
BRI EREENFER
EE - RIBIHITR IR & A& SR
HAEEH -

95



96

Perennial International Limited 1E&fSE BB R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the obligation present at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, interest income and operating lease
rental income in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discount, and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(if) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Operating lease rental income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’'s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Financial Risk Management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of
the Group.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“"RMB") and United
States Dollar (“US$"). Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. In addition,
the conversion of RMB is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by Mainland China monetary
authority.
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

3. Financial

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group will use any hedging arrangement,
if necessary, to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

Should RMB strengthened/weakened by
5% (2016: 5%) during the year ended 31st
December 2017 against the HKS$, with all
other variables held constant, the impact of
the profit after taxation and the equity for
the year would have been approximately
HK$14,000 higher/lower (2016: HK$5,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses (2016: losses/gains).

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in USD but the foreign exchange
risk is considered not significant as HK$
exchange rate is pegged to USD.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than RMB and USD are insignificant to the
Group.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the
market price of major raw materials such as
copper rods and chemicals to make plastic
resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised
price gains and losses on raw materials to
certain customers through price adjustments,
which can mitigate the price risk. The Group
has not used any derivative instruments to
hedge such economic exposures.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held
at variable rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. Details of the Group’s borrowings
have been disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group has not used any hedging
arrangement to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects
on the Group's profit after taxation for the
year as a result of changes in interest expense
on floating rate borrowings. The sensitivity
to interest rate used is based on market
forecasts available at the reporting date and
under the economic environments in which
the Group operates, with other variables held
constant.

Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the profit after taxation of a 100 basis-
point increase/decrease in interest rate
would be a decrease/increase of HK$314,000
and HK$344,000 for the years ended 31st
December 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Credit risk

The Group’'s bank balances are deposited
with financial institutions with reliable and
acceptable rating quality. Management
regularly assesses the credit risk of these
financial institutions by reviewing their
published financial information and credit
rating.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of each financial asset, including cash
at bank, trade and bill receivables and other
receivables as disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$241,565,000 (2016:
HK$235,637,000), representing 66% (2016:
66%) of total revenue for the year. The total
accounts receivable balance of these top 5
customers as at 31st December 2017 was
HK$58,597,000 (2016: HK$63,038,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

3. Financial

Risk Management

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure
sales are made to customers with appropriate
credit terms and the Group performs periodic
credit check with reference to credit ratings
performed by external agents, and makes
periodic assessment of the customers’
payment history to assess the recoverability
of trade receivables of its customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making
available an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities with staggered maturities to
reduce refinancing risk in any year and to
fund working capital, debt servicing, dividend
payments, new investments and close out
market positions if required. The Group
maintains significant flexibility to respond
to opportunities and events by ensuring
that committed credit lines are available.
As at 31st December 2017, the Group had
available trade and loan finance facilities of
HK$226,000,000 of which HK$40,289,000
was utilised.

The table below analyses the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances as
the impact of discounting is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
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Financial Risk Management 3. BERKRESEE)

(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EERBER
On demand
or within
1 year
1511
HK$°000
FHET
At 31st December 2017 R-B—tHE+=-A=+—H
Trust receipt loans and interest payables {ZsEUsE &3k R FE 7 2 37,779
Bank loan and interest payables RITERMERFIE -
Trade, bill and other payables B2 BIENEMERMNFKIE
and accruals MR 36,827
At 31st December 2016 R-B—XRE+=-A=+—H
Trust receipt loans and interest payables {=5EWiE E R KL FERT T E 29,423
Bank loan and interest payables IRITE R RIENF B 12,112
Trade, bill and other payables B25 -  ERENEMENFIE
and accruals R IEFT A 43,631

AEBESEENTIERR =
RAEEFELE  BRHRIFNOE

The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability

to continue as a going concern, maintain a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the
business and to enhance shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. The Group’s capital management
objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the years ended 31st December 2017 and
2016.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total capital. Total borrowings
include non-current borrowings and current
borrowings (note 23). Total capital includes total
borrowings and total equity as shown on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

EFRMBRONESLLE - ASHF
HEBRRLIRIBIRERE

7R &= [ A R A OB AR O RO B2 L AN 7
ERBREEMARE SR %
AEEA ARG TRRAOBE - &
TR - BEXEERT - Kﬁl
MESEERR BREEFR
E—tER-_F-RFET_-H
=t+—HIEGENE -

AEBMNABEEEL RERAE
oo M RILRBEERANEER
ZIS °© z@1ﬁg/@?§§lﬁmb§ﬂ&m§mj§§
(PBff5E23) - MERBIFREE LE
mERRTNEE MBI o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

3.

Financial Risk Management 3. BERKRESEE)
(Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EEHF‘%ME(%E)
The gearing ratios at 31st December 2017 and 2016 BE-_Z—t+tER-_TE—NFE+=
were as follows: A=+— Htﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%tt%ﬁﬂ
T
2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET
Total borrowings rEE 37,621 41,167
Total equity 4B 562,417 504,470
Total capital FEE= N 600,038 545,637
Gearing ratio BEEELLX 6% 8%
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 2AREME

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents,
short-term fixed deposit, trade and bill receivables,
other receivables and deposits, trade and bill
payables, other payables and accruals and short-term
borrowings approximate to their fair values due to
their short-term maturities. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments, unless the
discounting effect is insignificant.

REBUBKEERMBEENIRE
EREReMNRESEEY BHE
HER BRESEFREEE  H
HEWFIENS BNESERX
FEE - HMEMRIBERETAY
M HAE R RESEFH - A4

ERARERAY - BIERERZ W
ﬂ‘%ﬁ1 AR EAREERRELL
& At T A AR B i1 45 ) 2R 8L 3R 2R 2R
BHRESREIEMET - BRIEERIR
FETK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Risk Management

(Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

See note 16 and 15 for disclosures of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment that
are measured at fair value and classified by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy at
31st December 2017 and 2016:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level
2).

3, Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end
of reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets and liabilities is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017

BE—FT—+F+_A=+—HIUFE

3. HMBREREEGH)

3.3

D REMF (E
R-_E—+FER-_FT—X F+_-A
=t—H BARBEFEZERED
ENMETINARBRENERER
HEEDEZWE  BEMEREZEF
= B2HWE16 /%15

1, MAEEEMSTHRREE
HAEZ(REAB)BE(H
—#R) -

2. BBREAES —RHOREIN
WABBEIEX (HER) K
A& (RERITE) ZN A&
?E)ﬁﬂ‘%%l%ﬂﬁ@%‘dﬁ(%:

3. BEXBBEZEHELIEER
A ERM S EE (GEBRRE
B(E=H) -

HEEBMBSEENERTAZAR
BEREREHERBOTIZRET
R ARERANEREENAE
MMSREREHERE - ZET
BEFFIAE -

RBEEEMSEENSRT AN
DAREMNBHEERMEE - ZFh
BERMEEN R A BREMSEE (N
B) BEMKBIENEEM -
MW E—EHEMITENQIAEBEMRTE
MATBERBARATERHE - Al
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

3. Financial Risk Management

(Continued)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

No financial assets and financial liabilities were
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements as at 31st
December 2017 and 2016.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

4.1 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

MR EE(E)

34 EEVMBEERVBER

R-B—tFR-_F—RF+-A
=t—8 BEMBEEERMEE
BEREH - AR RBIERITHR
—HFBEE L MBLUREPTRR o

AR ST b E &M

HEMAE SR FENE - XRBBEL
BAMEMRAFETHE  BREEBRBIBR
THREHRKEHEENTEA -

REBER KA HEMBRS - FENE

R - RARSEH T EAHBRFENEE
MBENERTEFLENHBNAHEMR
R °

41 BiE

AEBBEEZ [ERDEEE R
BIH - EEEZENARER - F
REHERAE - TERNBEEDE
ERENAERE - E ERXRBB
B FERH M ENRKETE
ETEEN - AREREMG S
AR BRSNS - BIBRT TR IR IR
BE - EREHHRRERERIRC
ReBEIRE  ARZEKTEE
E BB TS AR RE B R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Estimated fair value of properties

The fair values of investment properties, land and
buildings are determined at the end of each reporting
period by an independent professional valuer. The
fair value of investment properties is determined
on an open market value basis by reference to
comparable market transactions. The fair values of
land and buildings are determined on an open market
value basis or depreciated replacement cost basis.
These methodologies are based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions as to income
and expenses of the property and future economic
conditions.

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. This estimate is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market
condition. Management reassess the provision at the
end of the reporting period.

Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment
of the collectability of trade receivables from each
customer. In making its judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of
follow-up procedures performed by sales personnel,
customer payment trends including subsequent
payments and customers’ financial positions. If
the financial conditions of the customers were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017

BE—FT—+F+_A=+—HIUFE

4. BRRSTHEERAE(E)

4.2

4.3

CERZE V]

REWME  THEEFORIAER
BERERERAB —BLEEM
BENRE - REMENAAESE
A EEMER R AFMHER -
THREFHNAREHRAFRNSE
BB EREERATIERTE ° M
ETETIRIBARRAE RO —
251 B 10 3 A U AR ST e 2
ROBEIS R MIEHRER

PR E 5 K H Bk K 2 B E
4]

BT JE LAY AR S AT I =) BE ) B E
& W B 55 B 3R % L A B UK IR 2 R
BRE - LA DERERF 2B
EEECHEERETR - EEER
WEMRER RS -

RAHAE SR P 2 RIE 2 F Y a2
BE - ITEERAE o R1EHH e
B BEREZREZAR(PIINEE
ABFATZRERFER  BF
NRBZ(BRERNR) REPZ
MR - WEAKETS 2875
AR - BRI EEL MR ZBE
NERE - RIRTREZR L BRI ME S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and

Judgements (Continued)

4.4 Provision for inventories
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment
of the net realisable value of its inventory, which is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors such
as the age of the inventory items and the assessment
of the results of the subsequent sales performance
of the items. Management reassess the provision at
the end of the reporting period.

4.5 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment
The Group's management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

5. Revenue and Segment Information
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

4,

BREThE R I (&)
44 BERE

4.5

R FEZ A #RFERAER
ERAEABEXEH AT EE
WEMGBATEREBRFEESH -
EHHER  BEEEEZREZA
= MFEIAA 2Rk KRR &
BHEXB 2T - BEERRSE
HIRAE AT BHA -

ERN Y AR
158 P 5 34

AEBEEEEEEME - BB IR
th 2 &= R B F HA R AR R I 2 5
X o WEhEt DERE AR RAUMLE
RINEEZ M - BE R&E 2 ER
A fE A2 R S ARG - AIRER X
MEMRMELBAES) - EEERK
BT ER - WA EAFIER
Z BUAERT 2 FH - SR S OR
BEENHE ZIBRIIEREEE -

Wz & 2 #BE
AEEEEEUNEN BRERRERE
RETS - ENRBZWEIT -

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Sale of goods HE 364,401 359,035

The Chief Executive Officer (the chief operation decision
maker) has reviewed the Group's internal reporting and
determines that there are five reportable segments, based
on location of customers under the electric cable and wire
products business, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,
America, Europe and Other Countries. These segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks and
returns that are different from others.

THAER(BELERRE)EHNELAEE
ABRERBEEEERLIEREREBT
*Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁim*ﬁﬂfl"* BEEE -
REAREE - M BUNREMER - S
D H E'"Eﬁ)‘éfilﬁﬂ e M B 3R 2 A Rl
Eﬁﬂ"*ﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

Revenue and Segment Information 5. WHBDIHELR(EF)

(Continued) o
The segment information for the reportable segments for E?f‘tﬁﬁig_f\ifg*&%ﬁﬁgmﬁ
2017 and 2016 are as follows: HERT
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation Amortisation
&
(MEBEHE) AWEE HBOWEE EXRMHEX e ey
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

=F-tF ZF-tF ZF-tF STt —F-tF iR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TR TiET TER TiEx TER

Hong Kong
Mainland China
Other Countries
America

Europe

Reportable segment

Unallocated costs

Operating profit

i
REAR
HEtBIx
EM
B

ST

118,242 12,405 202,217 642 4,562 -
53,061 5,641 316,638 5,649 9,610 579
10,407 460 29,913 - - 130

181,796 9,199 87,001 - - -

895 39 109 - - -

364,401 27,144 635,878 6,291 14,172 709

(1,283)
26,461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WERIHELR(E)

(Continued)
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets  expenditure Depreciation Amortisation
e
(SMBBEHE) NEFEE BHNEE BAMHRX e iy
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
ZERFE ZERE ZERF ZERF ZZERFE ZZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TET THT FET FHT FET
Hong Kong o 117,739 7,094 190,790 641 4,605 -
Mainland China B ARE 48,598 4,032 290,535 27,934 9,857 583
Other Countries H{BI5 17,554 785 30,357 8,513 - 11
America EM 174,483 9,214 72,337 - - -
Europe BOM 661 32 131 - = -
Reportable segment ¥ 732f 359,035 21,157 584,150 37,088 14,462 594
Unallocated costs ADEER (1,284)
Operating profit SR 19,873

A reconciliation of total segment assets to the Group's total

BOREERSEREENER

assets.
2017 2016
—B—+tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Total segment assets BOEREE 635,878 584,150
Investment properties LB 52,150 46,990
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE 4,742 6,126
Total assets wEE 692,770 637,266




5. Revenue and Segment Information 5.

(Continued)

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.

Revenue of approximately HK$152,477,000 (2016:
HK$184,966,000) are derived from two (2016: three) major
customers contributing 10% or more of the total revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

WERkoHER(EF)
AOEEBRRARTE -
U %8 49152,477,000% T ( —Z & — /N F ¢

184,966,000/8 70 ) =2k B — @ (=& — <
FZEl)EERFPERAEWEE10% 3k A

These revenues are attributable to the America segment (2016: o ZEWREIREBEMNDIB(ZE—NEF -

America segment).

EMDE) -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Customer A ZEA 85,401 74,292
Customer B ZFB 67,076 65,146
Customer C ZEC N/A 45,528
152,477 184,966
6. Other Income 6. Hblkzs

2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Scrap sales EERISEE 3,747 3,508
Interest income FBEUWA 63 35

Rental income from investment REZEMEZHESBKA
properties 1,253 691
Government subsidy R AT 4 8h 1,683 -
Other income from customers HEmEFIA 812 685

Compensation, storage and delivery BEME BTEN

income from customers BRIA 605 196
8,163 5,115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

7.

Operating Profit

7.

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

AR
ERRFIEIR, GEA) FHIEH

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Amortisation and depreciation: BHMITE
Amortisation of land use rights 4 3 {h PR AR £ 709 594
Depreciation of property, Yz BB REETE
plant and equipment 14,172 14,462
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A &
— Audit services —=E=t18H 1,460 1,400
- Non-audit services —JEFEETIE 2,034 893
Cost of inventories TFERA 189,857 190,130
Net exchange losses/(gains) HNESFHEL (U s) 1,484 (734)
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREF 2 E&EHERS
land and buildings 435 420
Operating lease rentals in respect of PARBEEBERS
office equipment 392 303
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R&EEE
plant and equipment 959 298
Direct expenses for investment EYEREL 2 EEEERY
properties 127 152
Gain on revaluation of investment EYEGLBERE
properties (5,160) (820)
Revaluation deficit of buildings BFEHEK 3,160 818
(Reversal of provision for returns (BERIEE N RIREE),
and doubtful debts)/Provision for RE N RIREAES
returns and doubtful debts (91) 305
Provision for slow-moving inventories 12 B E##E 855 79
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BIEESHES)
emoluments) (note 12) (Mg7E12) 97,531 97,305
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

8. Finance Costs

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017

BE—FT—+F+_A=+—HIUFE

M8 H

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ET—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Interest expenses on bank borrowings  $R1TE Z T 2 1,000 1,138

9. Taxation

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam
during the year is subject to corporate income
tax at a rate of 20%. In accordance with the
applicable tax regulations, the subsidiary is subject
to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive
years, commencing from the first year of making
revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full
exemption from corporate income tax for the first
four years from the earlier of (i) the year when profit
is generated for the first time or (i) the fourth year
of commencing operations; and a 50% reduction in
corporate income tax for the next nine years. The
Vietnam subsidiary of the Group does not have any
taxable profit for the year ended 31st December
2017.

B

BERMBHRIRIBEAREE Z fE5
FE R M 16.5% (ZF —7RF :
16.5% ) Z B R B fE » /BN FITIR
RAEENBRRAFE 2 H5HE
aRtE N IR A E B ERR 28T

Vi il £
FHEFTHE -

RBERIELEHNE R EIR
20% TR REUR D EFTER - RIE
BRAMREER  ZMNBRARIBEL
WAEFREBETAFREEKER
10% 87 ° bbb » BO)EEERE
U A B S Bl () R A U A B9 2B PO 4 (3%
BRERE)BTENFARN - ZW
BARBEE2EHRRENCERS
o WREZBNLFRZES0%MDHE
Fr8fime - Bt —T—+F+—
BA=+—HLFE AEBEHHE
BB A RIHE (] FE SR 0 % 1 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

9. Taxation (Continued)

9. 5 (%8)
(a) (Continued) (a) (88)
The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to the M Gt REERR 2 A
consolidated income statement represents:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Hong Kong profits tax EBENER 1,040 3,166
Overseas taxation YEINELIE 3,133 3,529
Under-provision/(Over-provision) FERBET R, (GREERHE)
in prior year 551 (445)
Deferred tax relating to the TRERMESRER 2
origination and reversal of EFER T (H45E9(b))
temporary differences (note 9(b)) 1,454 (2,137)
6,178 4,113
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation AL BB R DA ﬁ%JZi)EEIEEEifEx
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise HERRABE *Jf%% EMatE 2 B

using the profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: Tz 282N T
2017 2016
—EB—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit before taxation MREL AT A 25,461 18,735
Calculated at a taxation rate of B E16.5% (T —/~EF -
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 16.5%)sTH 2 Fi1A 4,201 3,091
Effect of different taxation rates BEMBER TR E 2 2
in other countries 1,349 889
Income not subject to taxation AR 2 WA (1,771) (897)
Expenses not deductible for TAIHH 2 2
taxation purposes 1,975 1,606
Under-provision/(Over-provision) in SR BHE T E /(FBEEEAE)
prior year 551 (445)
Utilisation of previously 1 A BT RIER 2 B TS B ia
unrecognised tax losses (131) (136)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax ARHERIELERIE 2 FifSE B
asset was recognised 4 )
Taxation charge I 6,178 4,113




Taxation (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

9. HIE(E)

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax b) EEHBEERECHEEESN
liabilities is as follows: 7R
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Deferred tax assets BEERTBEE
— Deferred tax assets to be — BB+ @A %KL
recovered after more than 12 BETIBE =
months (4,742) (6,126)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be —BAt+ @A BRI
settled after more than EEFIBEE
12 months 39,092 34,316
Deferred tax liabilities, net REFIEAE  F5 34,350 28,190
The movement on the net deferred tax liabilities EEFHIB A EIRE FRENESHOT
account is as follows:
2017 2016
—E —T—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
At 1st January n—HA—H 28,190 30,334
Deferred tax charged to/(credited  #1f¢ (Gt A\)é&R&18ak 2
to) the consolidated income FEIEFIAE (F5E9(a))
statement (note 9(a)) 1,454 (2,137)
Deferred tax charged to/(credit to)  $1%/(5t A\) B EEE
revaluation reserve EEF IR 4,706 (7)

At 31st December

Rt+—A=+—H 34,350 28,190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

9. Taxation (Continued)
(b) (Continued)
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities

and assets, without taking into consideration

9.
(b)

BitE (%)

(#8)

ERBERER—

PR E R K

HRE EXHBREREEZD

the offsetting of balances within the same tax R
jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE
Tax depreciation Revaluation surplus  Provisions and others Total
BEFE BB BERAM Eokl
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
2t ZTF ZE-tF ZTF ZE-tf ZT-F ZEF-tf %
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAT TER TET TER TAT Tar TAT
At 1st January R—RA—H 1,750 2,169 37,221 37,228 1,515 1,557 40,486 40,954
Credited to BiRABERT
the consolidated A
income statement (188) (#19) - - (457) (42) (645) (461)
Deferred tax charged/  #1%/ (5t \)
(credited) to Rt
revaluation reserve B IE - - 4,706 (7) - = 4,706 (7)
At 31st December W+=A=+-H 1,562 1,750 41,927 37,221 1,058 1,515 44,547 40,486
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
Tax depreciation Provisions and others Tax losses Total
BERE BEREM AENER g
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
2t ZTF ZZ-tF ZTF ZE-tf —T-~F -“E-tf —T%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TEx TAL TER TAT TEx TAT
At 1st January R—RA—H 4,175 3,369 5,961 6,443 2,160 808 12,296 10,620
Credited/(charged) to B A IB#RT
the consolidated A/ ()
income statement 98 806 (1,307) (482) (890) 1,352 (2,099) 1,676
At 31st December R+=—A=1+—H 4,273 4175 4,654 5,961 1,270 2,160 10,197 12,296
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

9. Taxation (Continued) #HE(E)

(b)  (Continued) (b)y (&)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) FEEFRIBEEE(E)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry- WA KN EERERASEREILERBEE
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the ERNHEE %}ﬁ‘;éi@@ﬂﬁﬁ%i
related tax benefit through future taxable profits B 2R 2K B AR B v A T E IR A9 AR A 57
is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred 15 23 M FERR o AN [ 30 £ 5t A] 4%
tax assets of HK$507,000 (2016: HK$556,000) in B DL S R 2R P AR R U &S B B IR
respect of losses amounting to HK$3,553,000 (2016: E5483,553,00078 T (= F — /<4 -
HK$3,369,000) that can be carried forward against 3,369,000/ 7T ) FE R IR LR 1B & B
future taxable income. As at the end of the reporting 507,000/%-57E(_5*/ N4 556,000
period, tax losses for which no deferred tax assets PBIT) o RIRE AR E AR TERIEL
were recognised amounting to Nil (2016: nil) will MEBEAECZERNER(ZZ—X
expire in 5 years, and the remaining tax losses of FE)BRAEFAZE - LARER
HK$3,553,000 (2016: HK$3,369,000) has no expiry T > B 183,553,000E 0 (— =
date. — 754 ¢ 3,369,0007% 7t ) 3 £ FI| Hf

=
Deferred tax liabilities of HK$4,592,000 (2016: REFWATE THE QR KRE
HK$4,031,000) have not been recognised for the RAF AT ZHTERABHME
withholding tax and other taxes that would be fhF B MR IR T TE & (54,592,000
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain BT (ZE— /N F 4,031,000/%
subsidiaries. Such amounts are permanently IT) ° WEREREN 2 BEEEM
reinvested. Unremitted earnings totalled BE R E—+F+-_A=+—
HK$45,919,000 at 31st December 2017 (2016: B &9 R 3R 2 A & $£45,919,000%
HK$40,306,000). JL(=Z—7X4F :40,306,00087T) °
10. Dividend 10. BRE
The dividends paid in 2017 and 2016 were HK$3,980,000 E-ZZE—+tFRZE—NFAZMOK

(HK$0.02 per share) and HK$3,980,000 (HK$0.02 per share)
respectively. At a meeting held on 20th March 2018, the
Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2017.

B 5 5l 43,980 oooﬁém(tﬂxz Sl ) &
3,980,000 7T (AR 27EM) - R=ZF— N
FZA-_FTHBETz2E2% L EFEEDT
KEBE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIZ
REARZ S, ©

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T F#T

Final, proposed, of HK$NIl H %ﬁﬁxﬁ}ﬁ?‘ﬂiﬁﬁﬂx SR
(2016: HK$0.02) per ordinary share ZEF—RF  278) - 3,980
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

11. Earnings Per Share 11. BRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on BREAREFDREBEFAZ ANEBKNF
the Group's profit for the year of HK$19,283,000 (2016: & & 19,283,000 5T (=& — /N F ¢
HK$14,622,000) divided by the weighted average number 14,622,000 70) RIRFAEEITEBRL
of 198,958,000 (2016: 198,958,000) ordinary shares in issue INAE - 9 80198,958,000 4% ( —ZF — 78 4F
during the year. 198,958,000/% )5t & °
In both 2017 and 2016, diluted earnings per share is the R-ZE—+FER_ZT—FE  BNR
same as basic earnings per share due to the absence of SHIES A BB EEE L B - ERE
dilutive potential ordinary shares during the reporting period. RN EEENFZFER -
12. Staff Costs (Including Directors’ 12. EITRAK(EIEFEEML)
Emoluments)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Wages, salaries and fringe benefits TE& - FHEN R REINERG 91,228 91,127
Social security costs M REK A 5,605 5,674
Pension costs — contribution to RIRAE AN — BB T E]
MPF scheme {EH 2 5% 436 483
Others HAih 262 121

97,531 97,305
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 13. EERTETEAEZEBIR

Key Management s
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=FHM
The remuneration of each director for the year ended HE—_ZEZ—+tF+-_HA=1+—H1t
31st December 2017 is set out below: FE  BREEWNEHHT :
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person'’s ENfEHEARSEMNBCEEE
services as a director or other services in connection EHEMEESEERGENREZ
with the management of the affairs, whether of the AT ZBle s EEKMEInT
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
Discretionary Other
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
EEps ue e miERE  HAMEF (i) Bz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHET
MON Chung Hung (iii) - 4,560 629 175 5,364
R (i)
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 252 155 1,727
e
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 654 3 89 746
FRTBRK
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 346 18 17 381
RIER
MON Tiffany - 486 99 345 930
=RER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
2UHREL ()
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - 84
RE (i)
MA Chun Hon, Richard (i) 67 - - - 67
BIEE (i)
CHUNG Kit Ying (i) 1 - - - 1

BRE (i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and

Key Management (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended
31st December 2016 is set out below:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s
services as a director or other services in connection

R (fE)
(a) ESHME)
BE_Z—XRF+=A

13. EERFEEBABZRBIR

=+—H81

FE  SREFHOFHOT

ENHERAREMBLERESESN
REEMEEREHEBOREZ

with the management of the affairs, whether of the AT ZBle s EREKMEInT
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
Discretionary Other
Name of directors Fees Salary bonuses benefits (ii) Total
ERMUR Lk e MiERE  EAMEF) kL]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FABT AT FET
MON Chung Hung (iii) - 4,560 593 154 5,307
F IR i)
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 237 150 1,707
B
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 654 93 183 930
FRTBRK
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 346 21 17 384
RIER
MON Tiffany - 502 121 253 876
REIR
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
IR (i)
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) 84 - - - 84
FRE ()
MA Chun Hon, Richard (i) 68 - - - 68
BHE ()
(i) Independent non-executive directors (i) B IENITES

(ii) Other benefits include commission, insurance
premium and MPF scheme contribution.

(i) Chief Executive Officer

During the year, no emolument paid or receivable
in respect of a person accepting office as a director
(2016: nil) and no director waived any emoluments
(2016: nil).

(i)

(iii)

RERBFEX TR L ENE
FEMBH S (2016%F : ) ARIRAE

Hip @i BEiEERS
BRI NREE 2R -

TTERAREL

EMEMSL (20165 : &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and

Key Management (Continued)

b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31st December 2017, the
Group did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2016: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31st December 2017, there is
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled body
corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2016: Nil).

(ff Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company's business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

13. EERFEEEAEZRBIR
= (4E)
(b) EEHERNKEF
FR o BEEFEY e ERGRIR
BR(ZE—AE &) -

(c) EZEHRILER
FAMEEEEIRERAELE
EERBEN(ZF—RE &) -

d HESREERBEMEE=R
REENHE
BUE—T—+F+-A=+—HZ
ERF - AEEIIRAHEREFR
BHRRE=HOYE(=ZZ—X
o) o

(e) MES - ZZEEZEHE
EABBRZESHNRET
BRUENER BEERNHE
b3R5 WA
BLE—Z—+H+-A=t—H2
FE BENER BRIIE %IJ
ZELBEERB AT S AZER
REFHEMRIH(ZF—RF:
)

(il ESEXRZ  RHEISEB
ERHED®
Y EAEBARRREMARBER
HA = BEARRESENES (TR
ERSER)BEEA#ES (RAF
FEINFATARE) HWEAR
5 RHEREH(ZT—RF  £) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fra M HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 13.

Key Management (Continued)
(g) Five highest paid individuals

In 2017 and 2016, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group included
three (2016: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2016:

EERFTEEEBAEZEBIR

R (E)

(g) ENERSHFMMAL
R-E—+FER T —R"F AfL
AEEBREHFMNALBE=(U(=F
—A"F o Z)EE ZUEE 2

FEHREXDN - KEEXH T
HHBMAU(ZT—RF - ML) AL

two) individuals during the year are as follows: HF LT -
2017 2016
—EB—tF AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Basic salaries, other allowances and EZAZ 4 « Eni2EE %

benefits in kind B 2,088 2,519
Discretionary bonuses H5RE 625 2,092

Pension costs — contribution to RIKEKR A — BB EIER Z
MPF scheme Tk 36 29
2,749 4,640

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

S T 5 g E

Number of individuals

HK$0 — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001
HK$1,500,001
HK$2,000,001
HK$2,500,001

- HK$1,500,000
- HK$2,000,000
- HK$2,500,000
- HK$3,000,000

07 7T21,000,0007 7T

1,000,001/ C £ 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 C%2,000,00078 7T
2,000,001/ 7% 2,500,00078 7T
2,500,00178 702 3,000,00078 70

ABHE
2017 2016
S P
1 =
1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

13. Benefits and Interests of Directors and 13. EERFTEETEASZ2EBIR

Key Management (Continued) = (E)
h) Key management compensation (h) FEEBASZHM
Key management includes all directors presented FTEEBABBIEMBEER =
above and three (2016: four) senior management. —E—ARF AN SREEA
The compensation paid or payable to key B -MEZBEBAEXNEARE
management for employee services is shown below: PRIEHE N HENB R T ¢
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiBT
Basic salaries, other allowances and £ 7% 4 - EfbZaL &
benefits in kind BEYAa 10,696 11,728
Discretionary bonuses 5 iEs 1,672 3,309
Pension costs — contribution to RIKKR A — @B EIER Z
MPF scheme Tk 107 131
12,475 15,168
The emoluments of senior management are within EREEAB ZMEE NYEE :

the following bands:

Number of employees

EEHHE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 0/ 7T21,000,0007 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ L2 1,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 2,000,00078 7T 1 1

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000

2,000,001787LE 2,500,000/ 7T - -
2,500,001/ 523,000,000/ 7T - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

14. Land Use Rights 14. T fERRE
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid AEBZ L REFERMEEHER
operating lease payments and their net book values are THEHEREFESWTAT :

analysed as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
At 1st January n—A—H 28,289 21,122
Additions NE - 8,613
Amortisation B (709) (594)
Exchange adjustment [E R 890 (752)
At 31st December Rt+tZ—A=+—H 28,470 28,289
15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BERRE
Land and buildings

(notes (a) to (c) Construction

i REF(H(a)Z(c) Leasehold  Plant and Furniture Office Motor Pleasure in progress
InHK  Outside HK improvements  machinery and fixtures  equipment vehicles boats (note (f)) Total

HRIR
Kip iz #E  BEREE GAREE  BAERG RE iz 4 (H:t) g

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TR TR Fin Fin TR TR Fin Fin TER

Net hook value at RZZ2—+5-f-H

1st January 2017 ZEEFE 107,350 141,315 2519 11,268 745 4528 2,844 5,359 32,536 314,584
Additions RE - - 667 2,074 - 364 132 - 2,454 6,291
Disposals HE - - - (174) - 1} (69) (169) - (1,013)
Depreciation bl ] (3,520) (5,551) (623) (2.827) (21) (571) (553) (506) - (14172)
Transfer &7 - 34,816 159 - - - - - (34,975) -
Revaluation Bff 22,040 2,792 - - - - - - - 24,832
Bxchange adustment  EXFE - 13,566 150 1,186 5 186 40 - - 15,133
Net book value at RZE-+5

31stDecember 2017 +=A=t—Hz

REFE 125,870 192,998 2932 10,927 729 4,506 2,994 4,684 15 345,655

At31st December 2017 R=ZF—+4

+-A=1+-A
At cost A - - 12,756 85,734 5,253 14,097 6,714 14,376 15 138,945
At valuation - 2017 fHE-2017 125,870 192,998 - - - - - - - 318,868
Accumulated depreciation  Z7EHE - - (9,824) (74,807) (4,524) (9,591) (3,720) (9,692) - (112,158)

Net book value BEFE 125,870 192,998 2932 10,927 729 4,506 2,994 4,684 15 345,655
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRRME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BERBE(E)

(Continued)
Land and buildings
(notes (a) to (c)) Construction
i REF(HFEZC) Leasehold Plant and Furniture Office Motor Pleasure  in progress
InHK  Outside HK improvements ~ machinery ~ and fixtures  equipment vehicles hoats (note (f) Total
fEIR
i) 5 £ BEREE GAREE  HAERE & et (GEG) &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL AL AL TAL THL AL AL FHT THL
Net book value at W=Z-x"E-A-A
1st January 2016 LEEFE 106,820 166,193 3483 12,571 775 4543 3,061 5925 9,874 313,245
Additions RE = = = 291 = n 618 - 24,325 28575
Disposals e = = - (279) = (13) (189) = = (481)
Depreciation il (3,391) (5,440) (828) (3,019 (26) (575) 617) (566) = (14,462)
Revaluation Bfh 3,921 (4334) - - - - - - - (413)
Exchange adjustment  [ER:F& - (9,044) (76) (926) ) (138) (29 = (1,663) (11,880)
Net book value at RZE—E+
31stDecember 2016  —A=+—Hz
REFE 107,350 147375 2579 11,268 745 4528 2844 5,359 32,536 314,584
At31st December 2016 R=Z—E+=A
Er—F
At cost AR = = 11,433 83,123 5,043 13312 6,605 14,767 32,536 166,819
At valuation - 2016 ff8-2016 107,350 147375 - - - - - - - 254,725
Accumulated depreciation ZiEHE = - (8,854) (71,855) 4,298) (8,784) (3,761) (9,408) = 106,960)
Net book value EEFE 107,350 147,375 2,579 11,268 745 4528 2,844 5,359 32,536 314,584
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BERS#E (&)

(Continued)

(a) Land and buildings in Hong Kong and Mainland China (a) R-E—t+tFER_E—RF+_H
were revalued on the basis of open market value =t+—8 uURBBRFAREKER
by direct comparison approach and depreciated 4 R AR R I8 ¥ ER R
replacement cost approach, respectively, by BSRMITAERARDBIEARTE
Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent firm ZEEFHERYBRARTESESE
of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December 2017 KASEE L o TRYEBFBEEE
and 2016. The following tables analyses the land and DITR AR BEARN I RIET -

buildings carried at fair value, by valuation methods.

Fair value hierarchy AREER

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2017 using

—E2-tHF+-A=t-HERUT

WANDAETE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEREEE EARHHA EDN:(]
Description g SERMISHRE HRHA  FURZHA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(—#) (B=4%) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET THET THET
Recurring fair value measurements &EHE AL ETE
Land and buildings: T R
—in Hong Kong —(RES - - 125,870

—in Mainland China — Az A R B A - - 192,998
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y% - BERS#E (&)

(Continued) -
(a) (Continued) (a) E—fE/j -
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) OVME-EE )
Fair value measurements at
31st December 2016 using
TERNFT_A=T—HEAUT
BABNRAAREE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HREER FARAEAD ESpN:)
Description el ER ISR R(E AR A TAlEREA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—%) (B=#&) (B=H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT T
Recurring fair value measurements &E M A EETE
Land and buildings: TH REE
—in Hong Kong —REE - - 107,350
— in Mainland China — {7 HARP B K et - = 147,375
The Group's policy is to recognise transfer into and AGE 2 BRZREHNEE 2 St
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the SHIRFEEE B HEREAREL A
date of the event or change in circumstances that REER -
caused the transfer.
There was no transfer between levels 1, 2, and 3 REAE—  ZR=F2EWES

during the year. %o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BERRE (&)

(Continued) -

(@)  (Continued) (@ (& s
Fair value measurements using significant ﬂ;IJFﬁE_j(ZiﬁjgﬁgiﬁnAE’gi\\mﬁﬁ
unobservable inputs (Level 3) B(E=/)

31st December 2017
—E—tH+ZA=+-8H
Land and Buildings in
buildings in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
UREEZ  LRPEIRE
T REF BT Y]
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
T THET THERT
At 1st January 2017 R—E—t+tF—H—H 107,350 147,375 254,725
Depreciation e (3,520) (5,551) (9,071)
Transfer i - 34,816 34,816
Revaluation surplus P 22,040 2,792 24,832
Exchange adjustment e R - 13,566 13,566
As 31st December 2017 RZZE—tF
+=-A=+—H 125,870 192,998 318,868

Revaluation deficit for the year A RNEMD
included in the consolidated R FER R
income statement at the end RAFEE 2 BB
of the year, under ‘other
operating expenses, net’ - 3,160 3,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BERRE (&)

(Continued) -

(a  (Continued) @ (&) s
Fair value measurements using significant iUFEE_j(ZiﬁiﬁgiﬁjAE@ﬁ,bﬁﬁ
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued) B(B=4) (&)

31st December 2016
- F+-A=+—H
Land and Buildings in
buildings in Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
MNRESz  AIRFEARE
T REF ZETF RG]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHET FAET
At 1st January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 106,820 166,193 273,013
Depreciation e (3,391) (5,440) (8,831)
Revaluation surplus/(deficit) BHAK(1BX) 3,921 (4,334) 413)
Exchange adjustment PER IR - (9,044) (9,044)
As 31st December 2016 RZZT—RF
+=-A=+—-8 107,350 147,375 254,725
Revaluation deficit for the year ERAERRNEM
included in the consolidated Y F R
income statement at the end of REFEZEHBL
the year, under ‘other operating
expenses, net' - 818 818
Valuation processes of the Group AEENEERRE
The Group's land and buildings were valued at RNEER T RIEFRBETEEM
31st December 2017 and 2016 by independent EME—ZT—tFRZZFT—F
professional qualified valuers who hold a recognised +ZA=+—HM#E ' LEEME
relevant professional qualification and have recent EEBARAIEEER - WHAGEE
experience in the locations and segments of the land RO 4 b [ 4 5 Bt B R <B 45 A 3 R
and buildings valued. For all land and buildings, their KB o BT A LM RIEF - B AT

current use equates to the highest and best use. M ASRNE RS MREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)
The Group’s finance department considers
and discusses the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes,
including all key inputs to the valuations and property
valuations movements as compared to the prior year.
At 31st December 2017 and 2016, the fair values of
the properties have been determined by Centaline
Surveyors Limited.

Valuation techniques

For land and buildings in Hong Kong, the valuation
was determined using the direct comparison
approach with reference to comparable transactions
available in the relevant market. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square foot.

For buildings in Mainland China, the valuation was
determined using the depreciated replacement
cost approach with reference to the current cost of
replacing an asset with its modern equivalent asset
less deductions for all physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation
based on significant unobservable inputs. These
inputs include:

Cost of construction

Cost per square metre to completion estimated
by the valuer using direct market comparables and
taking into account the useful life and size of the
property and its facilities as at 31st December 2017
and 2016.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straight-
line method over the useful life, including physical
deterioration and functional and economic
obsolescence and adjusting by the physical condition
of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

15. ¥% - BERRKRE(E)

(@)

(%)

AREENGERE(E)

REBEM AR R E B #9455
VA EE G EETE B LW -
BREEBYAERSNAAEES
A&%%ﬁﬁﬁtifﬁ??%
B R_B—tFR_FT—RF
+fﬂ_+ B mw%%m@ﬁ
BEEHTRAEMTERABEE

fhiEE
URBEN L RETNMEESRE
HETSALERZHAERKLR
EETE o ALY ENEE
EsLE 2R (P RERE) =
EERREE - B HEZENZKEXN
WARTFI REER

RPBEAENETHHE 25
UIRSFEEEEHRFEMENE
RBRERZBARTANRE R E
TEEEENRARANARES
BERARE  RERTABERGAE
E o EUEBARRE

R
FEEMR-—E—tER-_T—XF
T-A=1— Eﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%m?

FEWR G AR E R ERE B
FHREEMETEF T KERK
B o

fhetinE

RAERZEZSETEAERFHA

RERRNITE - BIEEABRE
TN REME MR L HYIBRE - WIKE
FEBMR ML -

FARMGBERML RS -
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(a)

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at

31st December 2017

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017

BE—FT—+F+_A=+—HIUFE

15. ¥% - BERRKRE(E)

(#8)
R-E—tF+-A=+—HE&EA
EATHABERANDAETEN
BER(E=R)

Relationship of unobservable

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TABEAA
it fhfEHA FAREHA HARERBE
Buildings in Heyuan, Depreciated Cost of construction of RMB1,600 The higher the estimated cost per
Mainland China replacement (2016: RMB1,650) per square metre square metre to completion, the
URFBEIAETRAEF  cost approach BEAABBERRARE6007T higher the fair value.
TEEERAE (ZZ2—"F : AR%1,6507T) BYAAERK AR
AREHS -
Estimated depreciation over the remaining  The higher the estimated
useful life of 42 years (2016: 43 years) depreciation,
BAEREHNN+ —F e the lower the fair value.
(Z2—"F  O+=%) T ENS - RAEMIE -
Buildings in Shenzhen,  Depreciated Cost of construction of RMB3,000 The higher the estimated cost per
Mainland China replacement (2016: RMB3,000) per square metre square metre to completion, the
P B AR RIIMEF  cost approach ERMARETHRARE3,0007 higher the fair value.
TEBERANE (ZZ2—F : AR%3,0007T) BERRERKASS - AABEES

Land and buildings in Direct comparison

Hong Kong approach
REBNIHRET BEEABE

Estimated depreciation over the
remaining useful life of 26 years
(2016: 27 years) and 39 years
(2016: 40 years) respectively

AREAERAFRN—T1F

(Z2—RF: ZT+4)

The higher the estimated
depreciation,
the lower the fair value.

fEEHERS - AaE-E -

E=t1& (Z2—7%F : O1%F)

CRpi

Sales prices, HK$16,904 (2016:
HK$14,417) per square foot of
a comparable property in close
proximity
THIRENEHER S RE
FFHR16,904%7T
(ZF—"F 144175 T)

The higher the sales price per square
foot of a comparable property in
close proximity, the higher the fair
value.

BYARAPRENFHRER S
REWS - AREES -
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. ¥¥ - BERRE (&)

(Continued) o . \

(b)  The net book value of these land and buildings would (b)y n ?%iﬁﬂ&%—‘r—ﬁ&ﬁfiﬁ$z
have been HK$107,474,000 (2016: HK$65,637,000) ERURKAMEA RS ESI - Al
had they been stated at cost less accumulated =% AR FH{EE /3107,474,000/8 7T
depreciation on the historical cost basis. (=F—75% 1 65,637,0007L) °

() At 31st December 2017, the net book value of land © J‘K\\ig/—\ti-f—:ﬂ =t—H &
and buildings pledged as security for the Group's HF{E & 125,870,000 T (= F
bank borrowings amounted to HK$125,870,000 — 75 ©107,350,00078 7 ) 2 40
(2016: HK$107,350,000). kT - BERAKERITENZ

B -

(d) The net book value of the Group's interests in (d) $$@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ§f§%ﬁﬂ;§ﬁ§%
leasehold land classified as finance leases are tiﬂ/ﬁ\tﬁZFﬁEﬁﬂ;\ii@Z%ﬁ@
held on leases of between 10 and 50 years in 7*@ = /\1”'670'0\0077%75(—2
Hong Kong amounted to HK$111,670,000 (2016: —73%F 192,520,000/ 7T) ©
HK$92,520,000).

(e) Included in total depreciation expenses is an amount (e) ﬁﬁ%%i & 8,409,0907;%73(;
of HK$8,409,000 (2016: HK$8,384,000) which has =7\ : 8,384,0007870 )5 A58
been charged in ‘cost of sales’ and HK$5,763,000 %52$J&5:763'0907%§75(—%*/_\
(2016: HK$6,078,000) in ‘administrative expenses’. iJ: 6,078,000/ 7T ) 5t Al 17 ER 54

(f) Construction work in progress as at 31st December (f) K‘\:%\_/\_\Ej\;ﬂ E_'—_E'EE
2016 mainly comprises new manufacturing plant, RIRF2ESMERE  RER
canteen and dormitories. B

. . -
16. Investment Properties 16. ®EW*
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
At fair value BARE
Opening balance at 1st January WN— A — B 2 BAFIgREE 46,990 46,170
Revaluation gain credited to the EEPEETAGAEERR
consolidated income statement 5,160 820
Net book value at 31st December R+ A=+—HZEm%E 52,150 46,990
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Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties through sale. The Group has measured the
deferred tax relating to the temporary differences of these
investment properties using the tax rate and the tax bases
that are consistent with the expected manner of recovery of
these investment properties (note 9).

(a) Investment properties were revalued on the basis of
open market valued by direct comparison approach
by Centaline Surveyors Limited, an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December
2017 and 2016. The revaluation gains or losses are
included in ‘other operating expenses, net’ in the
consolidated income statement. The following table
analyses the investment properties carried at fair
value, by valuation method.

Fair value hierarchy

Description g

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

16. REWHE(E)
BENEEREME B SERHE
MIHFER RKIBDIEE Y NS EF = -
AREFBDFEHEZEREETEHWE H
RN 2REERBRE  stEFHEZITRE
MEZERZEZREY N ZELERFE(ME9) -

(a) RZBE—+tFR-_F—X"F+_A
=t H BEVERBYEERG
BRI ERT AR QIR AR
MEZEEFRERELBEAEMN -
BEBHE T AGAIBER N HAb
EERTREE A o FRYIEF A
BEEDITR AR BEARNIEEDE -

Fair value measurements at
31st December 2017 using
—2-—t#+=-A=+-H
FERAUTHMANDAETE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HEREEE BEARMHA EPN:Y
SERMISHERE AETHA  TAUBRRHA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(B—#) (=) (B=8&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THERT

Recurring fair value measurements & HM AL ETE
Investment properties B

- - 52,150
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A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

16. Investment Properties (Continued) 16. REWE(E)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Fair value hierarchy DRERBR

Fair value measurements at

31st December 2016 using

—E-RF+ZA=+—H

FRATEANRAENE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
MHRIZEEE EAHEAM EDN:0)
Description it ERMIiZHRE AEBREA  THHRGA
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—H) (F=H) (£=4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT BT
Recurring fair value measurements & E AL BT E
Investment properties HEYWHE - = 46,990
The Group's policy is to recognise transfer into and AEBZHRERERER 2 EH

transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfers.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

Valuation processes of the Group
See note 15(a) for valuation processes of the Group.

Valuation techniques

The valuation of investment properties were
determined using the direct comparison approach
with reference to comparable transactions available
in the relevant market. Sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is price per square foot.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

FIRFHHAPERBEARELR
REER -

FARAE— = R=ZERzBEHRE
85 -
REENGERE

215 A E B/ EERE
15 o

fhERM
KREMENGEESZHETS AL
BRXZNAERLLBOREE © H£H#
MATLE B ENEEERER R
(Pl RERE) O EREHAE
HHEENREABARET
REER

FABERMIALELE
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

16. Investment Properties (Continued) 16. REWE(E)
(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Information about fair value measurements using R=-ZB—+tH&+=-HA=+—HEH
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at EATTBEGABE(E=R)2
31st December 2017 ARETTEZER

Relationship of unobservable

Description Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TUBERAZER
e fEERM TABRHASE AREZBE
Land and buildings Direct comparison (1) Sales prices, HK$5,676 (2016: The higher the sales prices per square
in Hong Kong approach HK$5,322) per square foot of foot of a comparable property in
URBBZ LHRET EEEEE a comparable property in close  close proximity, the higher the fair
proximity value
TERENEHER S FERRTEEDRBERS LA
RESTHRS, 676,’575 EBHE  AnEds

(ZZ—"% : 5322%71)

(2) Sales prices, HK$18,110 (2016:
HK$15,396) per square foot of
a comparable property in close
proximity

THRENEREERSH L

REFEAR18,11057T
(ZT—RF : 15,396%87T)

At 31st December 2017, the net book value (b) R-_ZE—+&F+_-_A=+—H

of investment properties pledged as security X & B R ﬁ E AR EFE

for the Group's bank borrowings amounted to 52,150,000 % 7t ( = & — /X F

HK$52,150,000 (2016: HK$46,990,000). 46,990,000/% )E’J&éﬁ%%{’ﬁﬁﬁ
o

The revaluation gain is included in ‘other operating (0) BN REEFREEaRA[ M4

expenses, net' in the consolidated income EFSFEE | o

statement.
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A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

17. Inventories 17. #E
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Tt
Raw materials GRS 20,823 18,227
Work in progress fE&dm 27,017 23,833
Finished goods 2URK G 59,799 44,048
107,639 86,108
Provision for slow-moving inventories 1€ BFE#E & (6,309) (5,454)
101,330 80,654

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
included in"cost of sales” amounted to HK$189,857,000
(2016: HK$190,130,000), which included provision for
slow-moving inventories of HK$855,000 (2016: provision for
slow-moving inventories of HK$79,000).

18. Trade and Bill Receivables 18.

At 31st December 2017, the ageing analysis of trade and bill
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

GFERAREREERIHIALGHE KA
#) & EEHE1189,857,000/8 T ( —FE— /R F ¢
190,130,000/ 7T) * ERFEIEAFER G
855,000/ 87T o (ZZE—RF : 2FAFER
1%79,000587T ) °

BWE SRR EE
R-Z—tF+-A=+—R WKES
B RERREEE A2 ERATT -

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT Tt

Up to 3 months BEAZ= = (& A 75,047 76,329
4-6 months PY{E A =758 A 5,223 7,188
Over 6 months BB/~ 1E A 628 528
80,898 84,045

Provision for returns and doubtful debts R & Kk RER#E G (216) (307)

80,682 83,738
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Trade and Bill Receivables (Continued)
The Group's trade and bill receivables are mainly
denominated in HK$ and USD. The carrying value of trade
and bill receivables approximate their fair values due to their
short term maturities.

At 31st December 2017, trade receivables of HK$70,153,000
(2016: HK$71,343,000) and bill receivables of HK$2,251,000
(2016: HK$3,174,000) were fully performing.

At 31st December 2017, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables which were past due but not impaired is as
follows:

18.

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

EWE 5 R R REE(E)
AEEEUE P EHRREREBUETR
ETEE - BUESEARER L REE
SE AR BB R -

RZETE—+tF+=-A=+—H
70,153,000/ 70 ( =& — 74 : 71,343,000
BT ZEWE SR 2,251,000/8 70 (=
T —7X%F 3,174,000 7T) Z RN EEE
S EUERSETT °

RZZE—+F+_A=+—H 2@HE
WERERKE SERRREDTT

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Up to 3 months BNHAZE =& A 7,651 8,695
4-6 months PY{E A =75 ME A 156 91
Over 6 months B~ {E A 471 435
8,278 9,221

The trade receivables included in the above ageing are
considered not impaired as these relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history
of default. All impaired overdue trade receivables have been
provided for.

As at 31st December 2017, trade receivables of HK$216,000
(2016: HK$307,000) were impaired and provided for. The
credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical
information about the counterparties’ default rates. The
existing counterparties do not have significant defaults in
the past.

A ERRECEEIE B AT ETTRERE
BRETHREERNOLEZBIER -
BERERHRKE ZRFECERE

RZE—+F+=-A=+—H - 216,000/
TT(ZF—7N% : 307,000/670) 2 FEUE 5
BRRE R EREE - ARG BB ERE
NEWEZE SRFNEEEZEENRISYH
FHALLERNFESL ERMEL G - REH
RGUFIEBFEREEAARGEE
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

18.

19.

Trade and Bill Receivables (Continued) 18. EWE SRR ELE (&)
Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as B E ZRREEEBAT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBTT
At 1st January n—H—H 307 2
(Reversal of provision for returns (BEEEE N RIREE)
and doubtful debts)/Provision for RERRIREE
returns and doubtful debts (91) 305
At 31st December Rt+t-—A=+—H 216 307
The reversal of provision for returns and doubtful debts BERE RREREEIA AL ERIF
has been included in ‘other operating expenses, net’ and & EET91,0008 T (—F— /R F :
amounted to HK$91,000 (2016: provisions for returns and RERREBEN©FELFT305,00087T) ©
doubtful debts amounted to HK$305,000).
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the RmEHRRZAGEERRER LI EKE
reporting period is the carrying value of trade and bill SRR RBEZEEE - NEEZE I
receivables mentioned above. The Group did not hold any IR IEBIRE o
collateral as security.
Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit with EFPEZUEEANNR  EHEFPEAR
the exception of new customers, which are on cash on ERfTEREURESNR . —Bms ' BF
delivery basis. Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 90 ARBEBEHEZ=TENLTHERMR - 7
days of issuance. Longer payment terms might be granted Rtk R R AR EEE RHAEBHERZ
to customers that have long-term business relationships P AIEXARKZISHRE] -
with the Group and did not have default in payments in the
past history.
Short-term Fixed Deposit and Cash 19. SHiEHERRESREALSE

and Cash Equivalents

B

2017 2016

—E—+tF —EF—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FBT

Short-term fixed deposit (note (a)) 72 B Bt R (P (a)) - 1,112
Cash at banks and in hand RITREFRE 68,621 67,191
68,621 68,303
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

Short-term Fixed Deposit and Cash 19. SHEHEZREASRESE

and Cash Equivalents (Continued) EBY(E)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the REHRAEBRAEERRESEITIR
reporting period of the Group is cash at banks amounting to & 72 BEEA DRI A68,341,000/8 L (=F

HK$68,341,000 (2016: HK$68,067,000).

— N4 68,067,00057T) o

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Denominated in: GEER
HKS BT 10,408 7,177
RMB AR 13,159 10,495
usD =TT 44,783 50,298
Other currencies Hib gk 271 333
68,621 68,303

(a) As at 31st December 2017, the effective interest rate (a) R-_TE—+F+-_A=+—8"
per annum on short-term fixed deposit was Nil (2016: RHTHERNEREN X AE
0.3%) per annum and has a maturity at inception of (2016 : 0.3%) - MR HEBREFERR
12 months. EERNEIBHBEAT=EA -

(b) Included in the balance of the Group are bank by EHEREAEEEFBEAREZIRS
balances and cash deposited in Mainland FIRITFERRIRE 4 411,023,000
China of approximately HK$11,023,000 (2016: BT (ZZF—75% : 11,980,000%
HK$11,980,000). Bank balances and cash mainly Jo) o EEUARBERE SN 2 IR1T
denominated in RMB are subject to the exchange FREE e TIZBE AT BN E
control restrictions imposed by the government in 2 INFEE I AR A o
Mainland China.

20. Share Capital 20. BRA
No. of shares HK$'000
BAEE FAT
Authorised AR
At 1st January 2016 and R=ZE—RF—H—BK
31st December 2016 and 2017, +-—A=+—HRFK
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each —E—+F+-_A=+—8 "
FREE0.10/8TT 2 EiBK 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BET R IRA
At 1st January 2016 and RZZF—ARF—HA—BK
31st December 2016 and 2017, +-—A=+—HK

—E—+F+-_A=+—8H "
FRMEE. 108 T2 LBk 198,958,000 19,896
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HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

21.

Reserves 21. f#
Land and
Exchange  buildings Capital
Share fluctuation revaluation redemption Total other  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
Exgs 1HRET Bx
BRepEE e EfRE EERE SHtRE  REERW am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL T THL THL THL THL
At 1st January 2017 RZZ—t%—A—-H 15,885 (4,579) 190,499 104 201,909 282,665 484,574
Profit for the year AEEEN - - - - - 19,283 19,283
Revaluation supluson T RIET 7 Ef:
land and buildings B& - - 27,992 - 27,992 - 27,992
Deferred tax chargedto B E(EEEZ
revaluation reserve ERERA - - (4,706) - (4,706) - (4,706)
Exchange difference WEARSHRER L
arising from translation SR ERER
of financial statements of
subsidiaries - 19,358 - - 19,358 - 19,358
Dividend paid S0]4) - - - - - (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2017~ H-ZE—+F
+-A=t-H 15,885 14,779 213,785 104 244,553 297,968 542,521
At 1st January 2016 R F-A—-H 15,885 8,389 190,087 104 214,465 272,023 486,488
Profit for the year AEEGHH = = - - - 14,622 14,622
Revaluation surplus on THREF S
land and buildings B = = 405 - 405 - 405
Deferred tax credited to 3t AE(EEEZ
revaluation reserve BRI - _ 7 _ 7 B 7
Exchange difference HEARE SRR
arising from translation RBVERER
of financial statements of
subsidiaries = (12,968) = - (12,968) = (12,968)
Dividend paid ARE = = - - - (3,980) (3,980)
At 31st December 2016 RZZ—5
+ZA=+-A 15,885 (4,579) 190,499 104 201,909 282,665 484,574
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

22. Trade and Bill Payables and Other 22. ENESHEREEREME

Payables and Accruals NRERETEX

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FT

Trade and bill payables (note (a)) FES B 5508 R 2B (M7 @) 22,817 23,191

Other payables and accruals HAb e 5RIB M BT 29,325 28,016

Total (notes (b) and (c)) #58 (MteE(o) k(o) 52,142 51,207
(@) At 31st December 2017, the ageing analysis of trade @ RZZTE—tF+-_A=+—H0 &
and bill payables based on invoice date is as follows: NESEFRERREZZELIRZ

BREC DATLRT -

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

Up to 3 months BNERZ==1{E A 21,631 21,916

4 - 6 months PY{E A =75 1E 879 829

Over 6 months R iE 7 fE A 307 446

22,817 23,191
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
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22. Trade and Bill Payables and Other 22. ENESSEREERHEME

Payables and Accruals (Continued) NRIEREFTREX (&)
(b) Trade and bill payables and other payables and (b) FEE 53008 & ZEE K& H ith fE 50
accruals are denominated in the following currencies: BN ETRAS AT EETE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
HK$ BT 19,322 19,438
RMB AR 21,261 19,027
Usb =TT 11,162 12,113
Other currencies Hih & 397 629
52,142 51,207
(c) The carrying value of trade and bill payables and (0) e E 5 5RI8 M 255 N EoAth FE A5 5K
other payables and accruals approximate their fair BREFRX 2 REERE QLA
values due to their short term maturities. YR EE R -
23. Borrowings 23. A
2017 2016
—E —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiBT
Current liabilities REEE
Trust receipt loans ErEIEE R 37,621 29,292
Bank loan IRITIEE - 11,875
Total borrowings BIEK 37,621 41,167
Total borrowings included secured liabilities of RGBT A KT & (37,621,000 7T
HK$37,621,000 (2016: HK$24,500,000), which are secured (ZZ—75F : 24,500,000 70 ) AR EE
by land and buildings and investment properties of the B i RIEF R E SRR (15
Group (notes 15 and 16). The borrowings are also supported X16) o (BB AR A RENE A R2H
by guarantees given by the Company and its certain R -

subsidiaries.
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

23. Borrowings (Continued) 23. fER(4&)
(@) The maturity of borrowings is as follows: (@ fERWEEBEWET :
Bank loan Trust receipt loans
RITER ERBIBER
2017 2016 2017 2016

—B—tF —TF ZE—tF T F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET TR TET

On demand or within 1R

1 year - 11,875 37,621 29,292
(b)  The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest b  R|EHERD - AEEOERE
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at MEEE A& R EHEE R B R
the end of the reporting date are as follows: ERRRRAT
Bank loan Trust receipt loans
RITEN ERBIEER
2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—tF —T-AF —B-tF B AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT  TET T TER

6 months or less M A 37 E B AR - 11,875 37,621 29,292
(c)  The average effective interest rates per annum at the (©  RIREHROFEHEERFFEAT -

end of the reporting period are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Trust receipt loans EEliEED 2.62% 2.44%
Bank loan RITER % 2.40%
(d) Borrowings are mainly denominated in HK$. (d) fEREBUBTLEH -
() The carrying value of borrowings approximate their (e) [ERWEMEREEARBERLY -

fair values.
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ERE TSR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 24. HZABE4&RE XM
of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation (a) BEELENFEHESHERBA
to net cash generated from operations Al Z $BR
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation BB B A 25,461 18,735
Interest income FBYA (63) (35)
Bank loans interest IRITEFF B 1,000 1,138
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMRIEEE
plant and equipment 959 298
Gain on revaluation of WEMFELEFRS
investment properties (5,160) (820)
Revaluation deficit of buildings BFEfhiak 3,160 818
Amortisation of land use rights + Jth {55 P R A 6 709 594
Depreciation of property, M - B MEETE
plant and equipment 14,172 14,462
(Reversal of provision for returns (BERE R RIREME),
and doubtful debts)/Provision for RE N RIREAE
returns and doubtful debts (91) 305
Provision for slow-moving ERTFERE
inventories 855 79
Operating profit before working BB S EE P 2 E R
capital changes 41,002 35,574
— Inventories —FE (18,516) 8,963
— Trade and bill receivables and —ERE SERREER
other receivables, deposits and HibEIERTR 3T &
prepayments TERTEIE 2,296 7,098
— Trade and bill payables and —ENESHREREER
other payables and accruals Hfth FE A~ I8 N BT R (679) (1,007)
Net cash generated from operations 238 A H))FIE & 24,103 50,628
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

24. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 24. ZABESHRERMT(E)
of Cash Flows (Continued)

(b) Analysis of disposal of property, plant (b) HEWE  BERSZEDH
and equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, EHRAHEERERN  HEWE -
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment = BRSPS B TS
comprise:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Net book value BREFE 1,013 481
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE MREEE
plant and equipment (959) (298)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME - MENEREER
plant and equipment 54 183
(c) Analysis of changes in financing during (c) FARMEEHIM
the year
Bank loan Trust receipt loans
RITEXR BERBEER
2017 2016 2017 2016

—®—tF T AF -¥F-tF “FTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT Tsr TR TER

At 1st January Rn—AH—H 11,875 17,917 29,292 27,320
Additions of loans i E - = 115,158 104,700
Repayments of loans BEER (11,875) (6,042)  (106,829) (102,728

At 31st December R+—A=+—H~ - 11,875 37,621 29,292
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A HRAMEGE)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

25. Commitments 25. 7EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREE
At 31st December 2017, the Group had the following R-TE—+HF+-_A=+—H &
capital commitments for leasehold improvements, EEFUTEE W - BE I
property, plant and machinery, office equipment and B NAERERRE 2 EANFE

motor vehicles:

2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAET
Contracted but not provided for ERESIER S 636 3,235
(b) Commitments under operating leases as (b) MEBALEHERE
lessee
At 31st December 2017, the Group had future RZF—LF+_A=+—8 X
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- SEETAHEEEHER AR
cancellable operating leases as follows: SEAEFFKOT :
Land and buildings and
office equipment
+HRETR
PN
2017 2016
—ZT—tF —BN\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Not later than one year —&FR 735 173
Later than one year and —FRBRIZRAEF
no later than five years 225 20

960 193
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

25. Commitments (Continued) 25. AE(E)
(c) Commitments under operating lease as (c) LAHBEALESHEHEE
lessor
At 31st December 2017, the Group had future RZE—+F+=ZA=+—H ' ' K
aggregate minimum rental receivables under non- EEETUREEEHERBRZ
cancellable operating leases as follows: HIREWHERBLT -

Land and buildings

T REF
2017 2016
—E—tF —F—K
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Not later than one year —F R 1,365 1,509
Later than one year and —FRBRIZHRAF
not later than five years 700 2,017
2,065 3,526
26. Financial Guarantees and Pledge 26. HBERRIEKHF
At 31st December 2017, the Group had the following RZF—tF+-A=+—0 REEZ
banking facilities, of which HK$186,000,000 (2016: SRITRAA + 1186,000,0007 L (= F —7X
HK$186,000,000) were secured by legal charges over F: 186,000,0007%7F)EX$%1%5\EE7¥
certain land and buildings and investment properties of the Ba /#178,92040007§TE (ZF— §¢ :
Group with a total net book value of HK$178,020,000 (2016: ?54,3‘340,0007’57&) Z2HET M REBFERIK
HK$154,340,000). BWEMEEEEM -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Trade and loan finance facilities B RIZERE 226,000 227,875
Forward exchange contract line REVNESHEE 62,432 =
In addition, the Company and its certain subsidiaries also s ARARREMB AR ARNEEESG
provided guarantees in favour of the banks to secure these IRITELE - WEIIRITIREER -
banking facilities granted to the Group.
27. Ultimate Holding Company 27. BRAREZERLQF
The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings RRREERBERBRELHEEMZ
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, Spector Holdings Limited Jh&x 4%4%f% A &) I
as being the ultimate holding company and Mr. Mon Chung BRI S A R B AR T o

Hung as being the ultimate controlling party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

28. Subsidiaries

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st
December 2017.

28. MIEB AT
RZBE—+E+=-_A=+—0 ' KAFE
BETHEEMBAR :

Place of incorporation/  Paid up share capital/

Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
R /R BERE/EMER  FEEHK i
2017 2016
Bt IR 5%
Shares held directly
EERERG
Perennial Holdings Global British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 Investment holding 100% 100%
Limited RERRES ERRIET RERKR
Shares held indirectly
HREERG
Ever Peak Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100% 100%
KEERERAR A LER3ET BEDF
Glitter Wire & Cable Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Investment holding 100% 100%
Limited ; LRS00/ T RAER
REEREERRAT Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
ERFEELTRD
2,000,000/
New Technology Cable Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100% 100%
TNERERAR &b L@k1,000T AR
Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERTERTR
10,000,000/
Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000  Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
wires, wire harness and
accessories
B#ER (B%) ERAT Bl LRk2,0000008T EEER &
BRBRREM
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 Investment and property 100% 100%
holding
BHEEERAR AERAES LTARIET RERFENE
Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co.,  Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric 100% 100%
Limited (wholly owned foreign HK$65,000,000 cables, wires and wire
enterprise) (note (a)) harness
E5ES (F) ARAT BEARE afas pEEs 4R
(2EHABIMER) 65,000,000 70 BAER

(Hi&E(a))
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

28. Subsidiaries (Continued) 28. MfIBAT (&)

Place of incorporation/  Paid up share capital/

Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
£ B AE L BERA/EMER  TEEHR s
2017 2016
ZE-tf TR
Shares held indirectly
(Continued)
BEEERG (F)
Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Trading of plastic resins and 100% 100%
compounds
BHER (F#) BRAA A LER2BT BEEZB MR
&
Perennial Cable (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD50,000 Investment holding 100% 100%
BHERBVIERA EBRAHE L 1M%50,0005% T RERR
New Technology Cable Pte. Singapore Ordinary SG$2 License holding 100% 100%
Limited
iyl LRRATIRTT AR
Shinka KK. Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000  License holding 100% 100%
A% L@R10,0000008T  HAEMHE
Perennial USA Inc. (note (b)) United States of America ~ Ordinary USD1 Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
(RzE(D) wires, wire harness and
accessories
%H LRRIET EEER &K
BagRREM
Shenzhen Welldone Trading Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly owned HK$1,000,000 wires, wire harness
foreign enterprise) (note (a)) and accessories
AIEEEBREHERAA] Ak HMER EEER 8%
(RERABIMER) 1,000,000/ 7 BAGRREN
(FizE(a)
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
and Metal Co., Limited HK$40,000,000 electric cables, wires, wire
(wholly owned foreign harness and accessories
enterprise) (note (a))
AEDLER S BRAR EIKE &R REREEER 88
(2ERABIMER) 40,000,000 BRRR R

(Bf&E(a))
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

28. Subsidiaries (Continued) 28. B (4&)
Place of incorporation/  Paid up share capital/
Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
B i/ R BERA/GIMER  IEER i
2017 2016
Bt ZE5F
Shares held indirectly
(Continued)
BEEERG ()
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly owned HK$10,000,000 of plastic resins and
foreign enterprise) (note (a)) compounds
AERBEERAR EIKEE &R BERHELEB AN
(REREFEINER) 10,000,000/87C Ritat
(FitiE (@)
Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Mainland China Paid up share capital Manufacturing and sale 100% 100%
Metal Co., Limited RMB65,000,000 of electric cables, wires,
(wholly owned foreign enterprise) wire hamess
(note (c)) and accessories
ARERZENEERAR B KR EHER RERFERR 5
(ZERFBIMEE) 65,000,000 A K BagRREMH
(FitzH(c)
Perennial Cable (Vietnam) Co., Vietnam Paid up share capital Leasehold land holding 100% 100%
Limited VND26,666,400,000

26,666,400,0008%E HELH

The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability
company.

Save as noted below, the above companies operate
principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places of
incorporation/establishment, except for:

(a) Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, Shenzhen
Welldone Trading Co., Limited, Shenzhen Perennial
Plastics and Metal Co., Limited and Shenzhen
Perennial Plastics Co., Limited are in Shenzhen, the
People’'s Republic of China.

(b) Perennial USA Inc. is in the United States of America.

(c) Heyuan Perennial Plastics and Metal Co., Limited is
in Heyuan, the People’s Republic of China.

FLHFBRBERBRABARE °

PBRIATEERRSN - Ll AR Z B ER
REBMIEE BRI, KIS

@ EHEECRY)ARAHE RIIE
BERRBEHARAE - FIIEH
B A S ARA R LEYIEHEE
AR A AR AR EFERY
8 -

(b) Perennial USA Inc.fZ A3 -

@ AREHMEBRSARABIMNF
FEARLMBIAR
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AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

29. Statement of Financial Position and 29. Bk REREESHE
Reserve Movement of the Company
Statement of Financial Position Bt & AR TR
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEmENEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE 62,738 62,738
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGB 58,839 62,779
Other receivables, deposits and EmEUER  FTE R
prepayments Bt HIE 393 209
Cash and cash equivalents He R EEY 270 190
59,502 63,178
Total assets BEE 122,240 125,916
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to shareholders NA R (G e
of the Company
Share capital & 19,896 19,896
Other reserves E G 78,537 78,537
Retained earnings 1R BRI 23,517 27,177
Total equity b 3y 121,950 125,610
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables and accruals H b e~ I8 M BT R S 290 306
Total liabilities FEN=Ei 290 306
Total equity and liabilities R EnYSE A=A 122,240 125,916

ARAZHMBRARNR_-_F—-N\F=A
“TERESSRELARKRE

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 20th March 2018 and
was signed on its behalf

MON Chung Hung SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
HIRME FRIBEL
Director Director

EF EZE
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For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—HA=+—HIFZE

29. Statement of Financial Position and 29. BRI REFHESER(E)
Reserve Movement of the Company

(Continued)
(a) Reserve Movement (a) fREES
Contributed Capital
Share surplus redemption Total other Retained
premium (note) reserves reserves earnings Total
BARS &2
R EE (W)  EEfRE SHtEE  REEN g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TAT FAT FAT FAL
At 1st January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 27111 105,714
Profit for the year REERA - - - - 320 320
Dividend paid THRE - - - - (3,980) (3,980)
At31st December 2017  RZT—+4%F
t+=-A=1+- 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 23517 102,054
Representing: HER :
2017 final dividend “EERRE
proposed LRERE -
Others Hit 23,517
Retained eamingsasat ~ B2-F—+4
31st December 2017 +-A=+—Hit
ZIRBRA 23,517
At 1st January 2016 RZE—~E—A—A 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 26,833 105,370
Profit for the year KEERR - - - - 4,324 4,324
Dividend paid XRRE = = - - (3,980) (3,980)

At 31st December 2016 ~ R=ZT—~4E

+-A=1+-H 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 27177 105,714
Representing: *H?ﬁ?% :
2016 final dividend -% /ﬁﬁff/ﬁ%‘
proposed L RHRRE 3,980

Others Hith 23,197

Retained eamingsasat ~ BE_ZT—F
31st December 2016 +-A=1t—-H8i
ZIRBEF 27177
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Statement of Financial Position and
Reserve Movement of the Company
(Continued)

(a) Reserve Movement (Continued)
note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when
the Company issued shares in exchange for the shares
of subsidiaries being acquired in connection with the
reorganisation of the Group prior to its listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued and the value of net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to
the shareholders. At Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component reserves of the underlying
subsidiaries.

Subsequent Event

On 12th January 2018, the Group entered into the
Construction Contract with an independent third party
contractor as its first phase of developing of the Land as the
Group’s production facilities in Vietnam, pursuant to which
the Contractor shall commence the First Phase Construction
Works from the Commencement Date at the Consideration
of VND67,513,308,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,376,000). Meanwhile, an announcement for this
transaction was made and published on the web page of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Approval of the Consolidated Financial

Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 20th March 2018.

29.

30.

31.

AV RARME(E)

For the year ended 31st December 2017
HE—F—+F+-—A=+—HIFZE

MBRARREERE R ()

(a)

Hiet

EE2E (&)

KR A Z A B ERE L A BT 7 LA
RBRBRAR BRI BB EHR
2 A]_E 177 5T AR A 255 (3] i e 2 T I8 A
AZRMESL  HHERERAZETR

5.2 BB A 72 B FE
ZEE - REERE— N\ —FR A
(B42]) - BA BTSRRI -
EAEEZ BT - SARBPEH AT
BEBER T2 GRS -

REHREIE

R-B—\E—A+=-A  AEEDET

E=HRRETIREEH - NEEME

TREANIEARERZLHNE K

BB ARERE BN B EERE &
EREmmTIEREERE —BEREET
12 - R{8/567,513,308,000# 5 /& (FH % 7

4923,376,000/% 7T ) °
N&

e

AD

BR B

B E R - R B IR
NEBRARRRZEE DM -

b E k1)

HBBRREN_E—N\F=A_+

REEEaHE -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tf ZE—RFE ZZT-AF TWmF ZT—=F
Operating results (HK$'000) &&%4&(T#HT)
Revenue W25 364,401 359,035 401,669 455,403 466,706
Operating profit 1REESH R 26,461 19,873 16,175 26,945 31,542
Profit for the year RE A 19,283 14,622 11,688 18,917 21,216
Financial position (HK$'000) BEf#ikn(Fi# )
Net current assets MENEEFE 169,387 139,996 153,955 152,541 166,179
Shareholders’ funds &S 562,417 504,470 506,384 493,073 475,704
Per share data (HK$ cent)  &RE3E(GBL)
Earnings per share — basic ~ GREF|— £
and diluted K#E 9.7 7.3 5.9 95 10.7
Dividend per share (interim SRR E (R E]
and final dividend) KRR - 2 2 4 3
Key Statistics FEHE
Inventory turnover (days) FERE(KRE) 118 112 110 108 96
Debtors’ turnover (days) JEU BRI EE (K& 81 85 84 72 80
Creditors’ turnover (days) e AR (RE) 40 48 43 47 45
Acid-test ratio (%) RENEL (%) 174.6% 160.3% 163.3% 141.4% 147.5%
Working capital (%) 2EEE (%) 285.6% 242.2% 252.1% 242.5% 245.8%
Total liabilities/total capital BEE/1EER
employed (%) BA(%) 23.2% 26.3% 26.9% 28.6% 30.6%
Return on capital employed & 3 & RREN X
(operating profit/ (25 H,/BR
shareholders’ funds) (%) éi)(%) 4.7% 3.9% 3.2% 5.5% 6.6%
Return on average total assets ‘P94 & E R =
(profit after taxation/average (R Fi1&&F],/ T3
total assets) (%) BEE)(%) 2.9% 2.3% 1.8% 3.0% 3.4%
Inventory turnover is re-calculated by the ratio of cost of sales to its  FEHEEBEHMTEAHEKNANEFHFERLLE -

average inventory.
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